
#plymplanning

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Thursday 16 November 2017
2.00 pm
Council House, Plymouth

Members:
Councillor Wigens, Chair
Councillor Mrs Bridgeman, Vice Chair
Councillors Ball, Sam Davey, Fletcher, Kelly, Morris, Mrs Pengelly, Riley, Sparling, Stevens, Tuohy 
and Winter.

Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf.

This meeting will be webcast and available on-line after the meeting.  By entering the Council 
Chamber, councillors are consenting to being filmed during the meeting and to the use of the 
recording for the webcast.

The Council is a data controller under the Data Protection Act.  Data collected during this 
webcast will be retained in accordance with authority’s published policy.

For further information on attending Council meetings and how to engage in the democratic 
process please follow this link - http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/accesstomeetings

Tracey Lee
Chief Executive

Democratic and Member Support
Chief Executive’s Department
Plymouth City Council
Ballard House
Plymouth  PL1 3BJ

Please ask for  Helen Rickman/ Jamie 
Sheldon
T 01752 398444
E helen.rickman@plymouth.gov.uk/ 
jamie.sheldon@plymouth.gov.uk
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy
Published 07 November 2017

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/accesstomeetings
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/


Planning Committee

AGENDA

PART I – PUBLIC MEETING

1. Apologies  

To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Committee Members. 

2. Declarations of Interest  

Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on this 
agenda.

3. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 4)

The Committee will be asked to confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 19 October 
2017.

4. Chair's Urgent Business  

To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 
forward for urgent consideration.

5. Questions from Members of the Public  

The Chair will receive and respond to questions from members of the public submitted in 
accordance with the Council’s procedures. Questions shall not normally exceed 50 
words in length and the total length of time allowed for public questions shall not exceed 
10 minutes. Any question not answered within the total time allowed shall be the subject 
of a written response.

6. Planning Applications for consideration  

The Assistant Director for Strategic Planning and Infrastructure will submit a schedule 
asking Members to consider Applications, Development proposals by Local Authorities 
and statutory consultations under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and the 
Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

6.1      58 Shaw Way Plymouth PL9 9XH - 17/01782/FUL (Pages 5 - 12)

Applicant: Mr Boote
Officer: Mr Mike Stone

Ward:  Plymstock Radford

Recommendation: Grant Conditionally



6.2    Peirson House Mulgrave Street Plymouth -        
17/01826/S73

(Pages 13 - 38)

Applicant: Devcor (Plymouth) Ltd
Officer: Mr Simon Osborne

Ward:  St Peter and The Waterfront

Recommendation: Grant Subject to S106 Obligation with 
delegated authority to Assistant Director for 
Strategic Planning & Infrastructure to refuse if 
timescales are not met

6.3      22B Woodside Plymouth PL4 8QE - 17/01858/FUL (Pages 39 - 44)

Applicant: Mr Essy Kamaie
Officer: Mr Chris Cummings

Ward:  Drake

Recommendation: Grant Conditionally

7. Planning Application Decisions Issued  (Pages 45 - 60)

The Assistant Director for Strategic Planning and Infrastructure, acting under powers 
delegated to him by the Council, will submit a schedule outlining all decisions issued since 
the last committee including

1)  Committee decisions;
2)  Delegated decisions, subject to conditions where so indicated;
3)  Applications withdrawn;
4)  Applications returned as invalid.

Please note that these Delegated Planning Applications are available to view online at: 
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningapplicationsv4/welcome.asp 

8. Appeal Decisions  

There are no appeal decisions. 

9. Exempt Business  

To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s) of 
business on the grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended 
by the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningapplicationsv4/welcome.asp




Planning Committee Thursday 19 October 2017

Planning Committee

Thursday 19 October 2017

PRESENT:

Councillor Wigens, in the Chair.
Councillor Mrs Bridgeman, Vice Chair.
Councillors Ball, Sam Davey, Fletcher, Kelly, Morris, Mrs Pengelly, Riley, Sparling, 
Tuffin (substitute for Councillor Stevens), Tuohy and Winter.

Apologies for absence: Councillor Stevens 

Also in attendance: Peter Ford (Head of Development Management, Strategic 
Planning & Infrastructure), Julie Parkin (Senior Lawyer), Helen Rickman 
(Democratic Advisor) and Jamie Sheldon (Democratic Advisor - observing).

The meeting started at 2.00 pm and finished at 2.45 pm.

Note: At a future meeting, the committee will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes, 
so they may be subject to change.  Please check the minutes of that meeting to confirm 
whether these minutes have been amended.

50. Declarations of Interest  

There were no declarations of interest in accordance with the code of conduct. 

51. Minutes  

Agreed the minutes of the meeting held on 21 September 2017.

52. Chair's Urgent Business  

There were no items of Chair’s urgent business.

53. Questions from Members of the Public  

There were no questions from members of the public.

54. Planning Applications for consideration  

The Committee considered the following applications, development proposals by 
local authorities and statutory consultations submitted under the Town and Country 
Planning Act, 1990, and the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservations Areas) Act, 
1990.



Planning Committee Thursday 19 October 2017

55. Land on Seaton Hill (East of Future Inn), William Prance Road, Plymouth, 
PL6 5ZD - 17/01288/FUL  

CDS Superstores (International) Ltd
Decision:
Application GRANTED conditionally subject to the signing of the Section 106 
Agreement within agreed timescales and to first refer the application to the 
Secretary of State in accordance with the requirements of Circular and Direction 
02/2009.

(The Committee heard from the Applicant’s agent)

56. Planning Application Decisions Issued  

The Committee noted the report from the Assistant Director for Strategic Planning 
and Infrastructure on decisions determined since the last Committee.

57. Appeal Decisions  

There were no appeal decisions.

58. Exempt Business  

There were no items of exempt business.



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 19 October 2017

SCHEDULE OF VOTING

Minute number and 
Application

Voting for Voting 
against

Abstained Absent due 
to interest 
declared

Absent

6.1 Minute 55
Land on Seaton Hill 
(East of Future Inn), 
William Prance Road, 
Plymouth, PL6 5ZD - 
17/01288/FUL  

Unanimous
(Councillors 
Wigens, Mrs 
Bridgeman, 
Ball, Sam 
Davey, 
Fletcher, Kelly, 
Morris, Mrs 
Pengelly, Riley, 
Sparling, Tuffin 
(substitute 
member), 
Tuohy, 
Winter.

Councillor 
Stevens 
(absent for 
entire 
meeting, sent 
substitute)





 

   

 

PLANNING APPLICATION 

OFFICERS REPORT 
 
 

Site Address 58 Shaw Way  Plymouth  PL9 9XH       

Proposal Replacement balcony and side porch/canopy 

Applicant Mr Boote 

Application Type Full Application 

Target Date    26.10.2017 
Committee 

Date 
16.11.2017 

Extended Target Date N/A   

Decision Category Assistant Director of SPI 

Case Officer Mr Mike Stone 

Recommendation Grant Conditionally 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Application 

Number   
17/01782/FUL  Item 01 

Date Valid 31.08.2017  Ward PLYMSTOCK RADFORD 



 

 

This application has been referred to the Planning Committee by the Assistant Director for Strategic 

Planning and Infrastructure due to public interest reasons and finely balanced policy issues. 

 

1.  Description of Site 

The application property is a large, end terraced dwellinghouse at the end of a cul-de-sac on a 

private road in the Turnchapel, Hooe and Oreston neighbourhood. The rear (north) elevation faces 

the Cattewater and, like other properties in the terrace, has a recessed balcony at the upper level 

and a small projecting balcony at the middle level. The front elevation (south) faces a steep cliff face 

now largely covered with shrubs and greenery. The area is a mix of maritime and residential uses. 

Area Tree Preservation Order 355 (Clovelly Bay, Mountbatten) and the South West Coastal 

Footpath run in front of the terrace. At the time of the case officer’s site visit, the path was mostly 

screened by the presence of mature trees but it is accepted that it would be more visible in the 

winter. 

 

2.  Proposal Description 

Replacement balcony and side porch /canopy. The balcony would be at the first floor level on the 

rear elevation and would feature a privacy screen. As originally proposed it would have been 2.0 

metres deep, this was amended following negotiation to 1.5 metres. The new porch would be added 

to an existing side door. 

 

3. Pre-application enquiry 

In keeping with the usual practice, a post-refusal meeting was held with the applicant following the 

refusal of planning application 17/0211/FUL to discuss possible ways to make the application 

acceptable to the planning authority. However there were no further pre application meetings for 

the current planning application 

 

4. Relevant planning history 

17/01211/FUL - Replacement of 2 rear balconies and addition of 2 side balconies – Refused, visual 

impact and loss of privacy. 

 

15/00448/PRDE - Two windows and one external door – Issue Certificate. 
 

5. Consultation responses 

None required. 

 

6. Representations 

Following the receipt of a high number of objections, case officers requested the introduction of a 

privacy screen to the balcony. When the amended plan with the screen was submitted, there was a 

second consultation period of 14 days. At the time this report was written 32 letters of 

representation have been received, 24 objecting to the proposal and 8 supporting it. 

 

The letters of objection make the following points.  

 

Loss of views 

Loss of light 

Overlooking 

Loss of privacy 

Insufficient details 

Unwelcome precedent  

Lack of room 

Increase in noise 

Same as previous application 

Visible from the SW Coastal Footpath 



 

 

Out of keeping 

Out of scale 

Devalue properties 

Possible future sub-division of property 

Porch will be very visible  

Porch materials out of keeping. 

 

Loss of views, the visibility from the coastal footpath and property values are not material planning 

considerations so cannot be considered when determining this application. 

 

The letters of support state that the proposal will enhance the area and improve the appearance of 

building.  

 

7. Relevant Policy Framework 

Section 70 of the 1990 Town and Country Planning Act requires that regard be had to the 

development plan, any local finance and any other material considerations. Section 38(6) of the 2004 

Planning and Compensation Act requires that applications are to be determined in accordance with 

the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

  

The development plan comprises of the Local Development Framework Core Strategy (Adopted 

April 2007).   

  

The Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan (the JLP) will replace the Core Strategy and 

other Plymouth Development Plan Documents as the statutory development plan for Plymouth once 

it is formally adopted. 

  

Annex 1 of the National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) provides guidance on 

determining the weight in relation to existing and emerging development plan policies.   

  

* For Plymouth’s current development plan documents, due weight should be given to relevant 

policies according to their degree of consistency with the Framework (the closer the policies in the 
plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may be given).  

 

* For the JLP which is an emerging development plan, the weight is to be determined by the stage of 

its preparation, the extent to which there are unresolved objections, and its degree of consistency 

with the Framework. 

The JLP is at an advanced stage of preparation having now been submitted to the Planning 

Inspectorate for Examination, pursuant to Regulation 22 of the Town and Country Planning (Local 

Planning) (England) Regulations.  It is considered to be a sound plan, consistent with the policies of 

the Framework, and is based on up to date evidence.  It is therefore considered that the JLP’s 

policies have the potential to carry significant weight within the planning decision, particularly if there 

are no substantive unresolved objections. The precise weight will need to be determined on a case 

by case basis, having regard to all of the material considerations as well as the nature and extent of 

any unresolved objections on the relevant plan policies. 

  

Other material considerations include the policies of the Framework itself and guidance in National 

Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG). Additionally, the following planning documents are also material 

considerations in the determination of the application:  

* Development Guidelines SPD (First Review) (Adopted May 2013).   

 

 

 

 



 

 

8. Analysis 

1. This application has been considered in the context of the development plan, the submitted 

Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan (JLP), the Framework and other material policy 

documents as set out in Section 7.   

 

2. The application turns upon policies CS02 (Design) and CS34 (Planning Application Considerations) 

of the Adopted Core Strategy of Plymouth’s Local Development Framework 2006-2021, policies 

DEV1 (Protecting health and amenity) and DEV20 (Place shaping and the quality of the built 

environment) of the JLP, the aims of the Council’s Development Guidelines Supplementary Planning 

Document First Review (2013), and the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2012. The 

primary planning considerations in this case are the impact on neighbour amenity and the impact on 

the character and appearance of the area. 

 

Neighbour amenity 

 

Balcony. 

 

3. Letters of objection have commented on the possible adverse impact on privacy of the proposed 

balcony to neighbours. 

 

4. One of the refusal reasons for the previous application was concern about loss of privacy to 

neighbours in front and at the side. Since the previous application case officers have visited the inside 

of no. 58. Based on this visit it is clear that there is already significant overlooking from high-level 

windows and balconies of the property to the front and case officers consider that the proposal 

would not make this situation significantly worse. 

 

5. At the side, from the platform of the small projecting balcony and the large French windows it is 

possible to view the private gardens of neighbouring apartments. The applicant has submitted an 

amended plan with a proposed obscure glazed privacy screen as a means to overcome this issue. 

Officers accept that the privacy screen would greatly reduce the scope for overlooking but would 

also limit outlook to the side from the neighbouring property and could appear intrusive and out of 
character. The applicant has agreed to reduce the depth of the balcony from 2.0 to 1.5 metres. Loss 

of views are not a material planning consideration and the neighbour will still have their main view 

towards the waterfront. While initial concerns about the impact of the privacy screen remain, the 

reduction in size is welcomed and officers do not feel that these concerns alone would provide 

sufficient grounds for refusal. 

 

6. Letters of objection have mentioned concerns about loss of light to neighbours. The proposed 

balcony would be located on the north facing elevation of a three storey building. For this reason 

officers do not consider that there would be any significant harm from the addition of the balcony. 

 

7. Letters of objection have raised concerns about the appearance of the balcony. Officers accept 

that the presence of the balcony will have a visual impact when viewed from the rear garden of 

neighbouring properties at the side. The size of the balcony has been reduced from 2.0 metres to 1.5 

metres deep by negotiation. The applicant has pointed out that, under permitted development rights, 

they could build a 3 metre deep and 4 metre high rear extension without planning permission, which 

would have a much more harmful impact. 

 

8. Officers have negotiated a reduction in the size of the proposed balcony and do not consider that 

the proposal would result in significant harm to neighbour amenity. 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Side porch/canopy. 

 

9. The porch would be well separated from any neighbours so case officers do not consider that 

there are any neighbour amenity concerns.  

 

Character and appearance of the area 

 

Balcony. 

 

10. In the previous application, it was considered that the presence of the poles required to support 

the balconies would appear out of character on such a visible elevation. The current application does 

away with the upper level balcony and supports and reduces the depth of the projecting balcony by 

500mm, but does retain the poles. The visible part of the poles from the road is reduced to 1.6 

metres by the presence of a flank wall. The balcony would be predominately glass. The removal of 

the upper level balcony shown in the earlier scheme is considered to result in an improved outcome. 

The degree of visual impact has been reduced and officers this is now acceptable. 

 

11. While it is a central tenet of planning that each application is treated on its own merits, it is 

accepted that approval of the balcony would set a precedent. Officers are of the opinion that the 

addition of similar balconies to the remaining properties in the terrace would not have an adverse 

impact on the streetscene.  

 

Side porch/canopy. 

 

12. Letters of representation have objected to the porch on the grounds that it would be out of 

character with the area and use inappropriate materials. The porch would be located on the gable 

wall of the terrace facing the road so would be visible. Following negotiations the porch has been 

reduced to a simple canopy with decorative panels flush to the wall. Due to the modest scale of 

development, officers do not feel that the porch would have a detrimental impact on the visual 

amenity of the area. Materials, white uPVC, are felt to be acceptable in this location where they are a 
feature. 

 

13. In post refusal discussions, the applicant referenced other recent balcony extensions in the 

Turnchapel, Hooe and Oreston neighbourhood. Whilst all applications are judged on their individual 

merits, it is clear that there is a body of evidence, based on officer reports and inspectors decisions, 

in favour of large balcony extensions, even in conservation areas. The National Planning Policy 

Framework (NPPF) contains a presumption in favour of sustainable development. Paragraph 14 of 

the NPPF states that development proposals that accord with the development plan should be 

approved without delay. The proposal is considered to comply with Core Strategy policies CS02 and 

CS34 and is recommended for approval. 

 

9. Human Rights 

Human Rights Act - The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights 

Act, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself. This Act gives 

further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on Human Rights. In arriving at this 

recommendation, due regard has been given to the applicant’s reasonable development rights and 

expectations which have been balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as 

expressed through third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government Guidance. 

 

10. Local Finance Considerations 

Not applicable. 

 



 

 

11. Planning Obligations 

No planning obligations have been sought in respect of this application. 

12. Equalities and Diversities 

There are no equalities and diversities issues. 

 

13. Conclusions 

Officers have taken account of the NPPF and S38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 

2004 and concluded that the proposal accords with policy and national guidance and specifically LDF 

Core Strategy policies CS02 (Design) and CS34 (Planning application considerations) of the Adopted 

Core Strategy of Plymouth’s Local Development Framework 2006-2021, policies DEV1 (Protecting 

health and amenity) and DEV20 (Place shaping and the quality of the built environment) of the JLP 

and paragraph 14 of the NPPF which states that development proposals that accord with the 

development plan should be approved without delay. The application is recommended for approval. 

 

14. Recommendation 

In respect of the application dated 31.08.2017 it is recommended to Grant Conditionally 

 

15. Conditions / Reasons 

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved 

plans:  

 

1 CONDITION: APPROVED PLANS 

 

Site Location Plan 29082017 - received 29/08/17 

Plans and Elevations 02112017 - received 02/11/17 

 

Reason: 

For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of good planning, in accordance with policy CS34 of 

the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and paragraphs 61-

66 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 

 

 2 CONDITION: COMMENCE WITHIN 3 YEARS 

 

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years beginning 

from the date of this permission. 

 

Reason: 

To comply with Section 51 of the Planning  & Compulsory Purchase  Act 2004. 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 3 CONDITION: PRIVACY SCREEN 

 

PRE-OCCUPATION. 

 

The glazed privacy screen shown on approved drawing Proposed Plans and Elevations dated 

20/10/2017, shall be provided in accordance with the approved details prior to first use of the 

balcony, and shall thereafter be retained in perpetuity. The glazed screen shall be constructed of glass 

with an obscurity rating of not less than level 5. 

 

Reason: 

In order to protect the privacy enjoyed by the occupiers of the adjacent dwelling in accordance with 

Policy CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007. 

 

 

Informatives 

 

 1 INFORMATIVE: CONDITIONAL APPROVAL NEGOTIATION 

 

In accordance with the requirements of Article 31 of the Town and Country Planning (Development 

Management Procedure) (England) Order 2010 and paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning 

Policy Framework the Council has worked in a positive and pro-active way with the Applicant and 

has negotiated amendments to the application to enable the grant of planning permission. 

 

 

 2 INFORMATIVE: (NOT CIL LIABLE) DEVELOPMENT IS NOT LIABLE FOR A 

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY CONTRIBUTION 

 

The Local Planning Authority has assessed that this development, due to its size or nature, is exempt 

from any liability under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended). 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 

   

 

PLANNING APPLICATION 

OFFICERS REPORT 
 
 

Site Address Peirson House  Mulgrave Street  Plymouth       

Proposal 

Variation of condition 2 of 16/00154/FUL - Minor material amendment 

including reduction in footprint, elevational & floor plan changes 

(including residential mix) and alterations to landscaping & car parking 

provision 

 
 

Applicant Devcor (Plymouth) Ltd 

Application Type Removal or variation of a condition 

Target Date    08.12.2017 
Committee 

Date 
16.11.2017 

Extended Target Date N/A   

Decision Category Major - More than 15 Public Comments 

Case Officer Mr Simon Osborne 

Recommendation 
Grant Subject to S106 Obligation with delegated authority to Assistant 

Director for Strategic Planning & Infrastructure to refuse if timescales 
are not met 

 

 

Application 

Number   
17/01826/S73  Item 02 

Date Valid 08.09.2017  Ward ST PETER AND THE WATERFRONT 



 

 

1.  Description of Site 

Peirson House is a 3 storey flat roofed building located between Mulgrave Street and Notte Street.  

The building was previously used as a residential home but has been vacant since 2012.  The site 

contains a rear garden area.   

 

The site is situated on the edge of the Hoe Conservation Area, and is immediately adjacent to the 

Grade II listed buildings on the corner of Lockyer Street (No 14 and No 15 Lockyer Court), which 

was previously an orphanage and later a hospital. A short distance along the road on the same side is 

The Crescent, an elegant terrace of Grade II* and Grade II listed buildings. The site is therefore very 

prominent and visible, and in close proximity to important listed buildings.   

 

Most of the buildings in the immediate area and throughout the Hoe Conservation Area are of a 

relatively uniform scale and mass, and this extends to the building currently on the site, despite it 

being a much later addition on the site of a terrace of houses that were bombed in the second world 

war. Lockyer Court is three-storeys plus an attic and a basement, and this scale continues down the 

road and is retained throughout the surrounding area until it is terminated by the elegant terrace of 

The Crescent.   However there are existing taller buildings in the Conservation Area particularly 

along Notte Street including the nearby Opel Villas and the more recent Hoe Centre.   Other taller 

buildings have recently gained approval in the local area including on the opposite side of the road 

however these do not fall within the boundary of the Conservation Area. 

 

The existing building itself has been labelled in the Hoe Conservation Area Appraisal and 

Management Plan as having a negative impact on the Conservation Area. 

 

2.  Proposal Description 

The Planning Application is a Section 73 Application which seeks to vary condition 2 (plans) which 

granted consent for  the demolition of the care home and construction of a 7 storey building 

containing 76 apartments with undercroft parking, & associated landscaping & infrastructure. If the 

application is approved it will grant a new consent for the site however in determining this 

application the consideration relates to the acceptability of the proposed changes rather than the 

acceptability of the full proposal as this has already been granted planning consent under application 
16/00154/FUL 

 

This application seeks to amend the approved plans (condition 2).  The amendments include: 

 

• Reduction in footprint – The proposed flank elevations would be reduced in depth by 

approximately 4.5 metres reducing the buildings footprint by approximately 20%. 

 

• Elevational & floor plan changes including removal of the approved corner projections and 

squaring off the central projection (previously curved), removing attic recess on the side elevations, 

and general increase in window/door  sizes.   

 

• Change of residential mix from the approved 50x 2beds and 26x 1beds to 40x2beds and 36x1 

beds. 

 

• Alterations to landscaping & car parking provision including a reduction in parking spaces 

from 39 -32 and relocation of the proposed bin store from the west side to the east side of the 

building. 

 

Following comments from officers some amendments have been made to the scheme to address 

concerns during the application process. These changes are outlined in the analysis section of the 

report but briefly include reinstatement of the approved horizontal band, removal of an attic 

projection, additional cladding on the ground floor side elevations, the side of balconies removed 



 

 

from the side elevations, reinstatement of trees and additional public seating to the front of the 

building, additional landscaping at the rear and minor changes to the parking arrangements including a 

visibility splay.  Tracking diagrams have also been provided. 

 

3. Pre-application Enquiry 

16/02185/MAJ – A similar scheme showing a reduction in depth but with less elevational changes was 

submitted at pre-app.  The revisions were generally supported. 

 

4. Relevant Planning History 

16/00154/FUL - Demolition of care home and construction of 7 storey building containing 76 

apartments with undercroft parking, & associated landscaping & infrastructure – Permitted. 

 

15/00095/FUL - Redevelop site to provide 9 storey building containing 92 apartments, with 

undercroft parking and associated landscaping (demolition of existing building) refused. 

 

5. Consultation Responses 

Historic England– object - Historic England continues to regret the visual impact of these  proposals 

on the character and appearance of the Hoe Conservation Area. They acknowledge that the 

reduction in the building's footprint - as proposed by this application - will have the benefit of 

reducing the depth of the proposed building's flank elevations. Despite this modest improvement 

however, it remains the case that the development will cause serious harm to the conservation area. 

 

Historic Environment Officer – object – Less than substantial harm 

 

Environment Agency – No objections 

 

Local Highway Authority– No objections following submission of amended plans 

 

Police Architectural Liaison Officer – No objections 

 

Public Protection Service – No objections  
 

Natural Infrastructure Team – No objections following submission of amended plans. 

 

Public Health- No objections 

 

Public Protection – No objections. 

 

Hoe Neighbourhood Forum- object: 

-Insufficient information to properly assess the scheme. 

-Viability and affordable housing needs to be reassessed. 

-Privacy concerns from east and west balconies. 

-Visual impact of attic and general impact on the Conservation Area and listed buildings. 

-Potential impacts on the highway including refuse collection and existing parking bays.  

  

Further detail of responses are provided in the analysis section below. 

 

6. Representations 

27 letters of objection have been received.  The issues raised are: 

1. Poorer design.  Features included to improve appearance such as horizontal band, attic set-in have 

been removed. 

2. Less parking spaces and associated overspill 

3. The Hoe needs family housing not 1 beds. 



 

 

4.  The bin store has been moved – how will lorries collect rubbish.  

5.  The position of bin store will impact on neighbouring properties. 

6. The one bedroom apartments are aiming at the student market  

7.  The changes are not ‘minor’ 

8.  The design has been cheapened. 

9. The parking entrance has been reduced in size. 

10.  There are no tracking diagrams to demonstrate movement and impact on existing parking 

spaces. 

11.  The rear terraced area is a fire risk and will be noisy due to echo. 

12.  The elevational treatment is monotonous and bland. 

13.  The terraced landscaping and public area has been removed. 

14. While the reduction in depth is welcome the proposal will still not conserve or enhance the 

conservation area. 

15.  The proposed apartments will be narrow and only be served by one opening resulting in the 

need for artificial light. 

16.  One bedroom flats are at odds with the city’s demand for 2 bed units. 

17. Additional balconies will overlook neighbouring properties. 

18.  How will emergency vehicles negotiate the narrow lanes? 

19.  Why can’t the height and width be reduced? 

20.  The pedestrian route has been removed. 

21.  The building will look like an office block 

22. The viability and s106 should be re-visited with the potential to provide Affordable Housing on 

site. 

 

It should be noted that at the time of publication the consultation period for comments regarding 

the amendments made during the application is ongoing.  Any additional representations received 

will be presented in an addendum report. 

 

7. Relevant Policy Framework 

Section 70 of the 1990 Town and Country Planning Act requires that regard be had to the 

development plan, any local finance and any other material considerations. Section 38(6) of the 2004 
Planning and Compensation Act requires that applications are to be determined in accordance with 

the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

  

The development plan comprises of the Local Development Framework Core Strategy (Adopted 

April 2007) and the City Centre and University Area Action Plan.   

  

The Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan (the JLP) will replace the Core Strategy and 

other Plymouth Development Plan Documents as the statutory development plan for Plymouth once 

it is formally adopted. 

  

Annex 1 of the National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) provides guidance on 

determining the weight in relation to existing and emerging development plan policies.   

 

- For Plymouth’s current development plan documents, due weight should be given to relevant 

policies according to their degree of consistency with the Framework (the closer the policies in the 

plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may be given). 

        

- For the JLP which is an emerging development plan, the weight is to be determined by the stage of 

its preparation, the extent to which there are unresolved objections, and its degree of consistency 

with the Framework. 

  



 

 

The JLP is at an advanced stage of preparation having now been submitted to the Planning 

Inspectorate for Examination, pursuant to Regulation 22 of the Town and Country Planning (Local 

Planning) (England) Regulations.  It is considered to be a sound plan, consistent with the policies of 

the Framework, and is based on up to date evidence.  It is therefore considered that the JLP’s 

policies have the potential to carry significant weight within the planning decision, particularly if there 

are no substantive unresolved objections. The precise weight will need to be determined on a case 

by case basis, having regard to all of the material considerations as well as the nature and extent of 

any unresolved objections on the relevant plan policies. 

  

Other material considerations include the policies of the Framework itself, guidance in National 

Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG). Additionally, the following planning documents are also material 

considerations in the determination of the application:  

• Sustainable Design Supplementary Planning Document. 

• Development Guidelines Supplementary Planning Document (first review).  

• Planning Obligations & Affordable Housing 2nd Review Supplementary Planning Document. 

• Hoe Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan. 

 

 

8. Analysis 

1. This application has been considered in the context of the development plan, the submitted Joint 

Local Plan, the Framework and other material policy documents as set out in Section 7.  

 

2. The application is a section 73 application which seeks to amend details set out within conditions 2 

(Plans) of 16/00154/FUL . If the application is approved it will grant a new planning consent for the 

site however the consideration of this application focuses upon the changes proposed and their 

acceptability, rather than the acceptability of the scheme as a whole, which has already been 

established in the granting of the application. 

 

3. The application turns upon policies CS02 (Design), CS03 (Historic Environment) CS05 

(Development of Existing Sites), CS15 (Overall Housing Provision), CS18 (Plymouth’s Green Space), 

CS19 (Wildlife), CS20 (Sustainable Resource Use), CS21 (Flood Risk) CS22 (Pollution), CS28 (Local 
Transport Considerations), CS32 (Designing Out Crime) CS33 (Community Benefits / Planning 

Obligations), Area Vision 4 (The Hoe), and CS34 (Planning Application Considerations).   

 

4. The policies of most relevance from the emerging Joint Local Plan  are STP2 ( Sustainable Linked 

neighbourhoods and sustainable rural communities) SO3 ( Delivering growth n Plymouths City 

Centre and Waterfront growth area)  DEV7 (Meeting local housing needs), DEV10 (Delivering high 

quality housing) DEV20 (Place shaping and the quality of the built environment) DEV21 (Conserving 

the historic environment) DEV22 (Development affecting the historic environment) DEV28 

(Protecting and enhancing biodiversity and geological conservation) DEV31 (Specific provisions 

relating to transport) DEV32 (Meeting the community infrastructure needs of new homes) DEL1 

(Approach to development delivery and viability, planning obligations and Community Infrastructure 

Levy). 

 

5. The main considerations are housing provision, design and historic environment, neighbouring 

amenity, living standards and highway issues. 

 

Housing Supply 

6. When determining applications for residential development it is important to give consideration to 

housing supply.    

 

7. Paragraph 47 of the NPPF stipulates that “to boost significantly the supply of housing, local 

planning authorities should…identify and update annually a supply of specific deliverable sites 



 

 

sufficient to provide five years’ worth of housing against their housing requirements with an 

additional buffer of 5% (moved forward from later in the plan period) to ensure choice and 

competition in the market for land.  Where there has been a record of persistent under delivery of 

housing, local planning authorities should increase the buffer to 20% (moved from later in the plan 

period) to provide a realistic prospect of achieving the planned supply and to ensure choice and 

competition in the market for land” 

 

8. Paragraph 49 of the NPPF states that “housing applications should be considered in the context of 

the presumption in favour of sustainable development.  Relevant policies for the supply of housing 

should not be considered up-to-date if the local planning authority cannot demonstrate a five-year 

supply of deliverable housing sites.” 

 

9. For the reasons set out in the Authority’s Annual Monitoring Report, when measured against the 

housing requirement in the adopted development plan (the Core Strategy), Plymouth cannot 

demonstrate at present a deliverable 5 year land supply for the period 2017-22.  

 

10. It should be noted, however, that the Local Planning Authority is at a relatively advanced stage in 

the preparation of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan.  The pre-submission 

version of the JLP has been formally approved by Plymouth City Council, West Devon Borough 

Council and South Hams District Council for a six-week period for representations, pursuant to 

Regulation 19 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations.  The pre 

submission draft JLP sets out that a five year supply of deliverable housing sites can be demonstrated 

for the whole plan area, for the Plymouth Policy Area and for the Thriving Towns and Villages Policy 

Area, when measured against the new housing requirements set out in the JLP.  Guidance on the 

amount of weight to be applied to the JLP is contained elsewhere in this report.  It should, however, 

be considered that since the five year land supply elements of the JLP are likely to attract significant 

representations which will be considered at the Examination into the JLP, only limited weight should 

be given to the emerging five year land supply position. 

 

11. The NPPF (footnote 11) also specifies that to be considered deliverable, a site must be: 

• Available to develop now 
• Suitable for residential development in terms of its location and sustainability; and 

• Achievable, with a reasonable prospect that homes will be delivered on the site within five years 

and in particular that the development of the site is viable. 

 

12. Paragraph 14 of the NPPF states “At the heart of the National Planning Policy Framework is a 

presumption in favour of sustainable development, which should be seen as a golden thread running 

through both plan-making and decision taking… 

 

13. For decision-taking this means: 

• approving development proposals that accord with the development plan without delay; and 

• where the development plan is absent, silent or relevant policies are out-of date, granting 

permission unless: 

- any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when 

assessed against the policies in this framework taken as a whole; or  

- specific policies in this Framework indicate development should be restricted” 

 

14. As Plymouth cannot demonstrate a 5 year supply when set against the housing requirement as 

set out in the adopted Core Strategy, the city’s housing supply policy should not be considered up-

to-date. Paragraph 14 of the NPPF is therefore engaged and substantial weight must be accorded to 

the need for housing in the planning balance when determining housing applications.   

 

 



 

 

Historic Environment and Design. 

15. CS03 of the Core Strategy requires the Council to safeguard and where possible enhance 

historic environment interests and the character and setting of areas of acknowledged importance 

including listed buildings and conservation areas.  CS02 requires development to respect the 

character, identity, context of Plymouth’s historic townscape and contribute positively to an area’s 

identity and heritage in terms of scale, density, layout and access.  CS34 requires development to be 

compatible with its surroundings in terms of style, siting, layout, orientation, visual impact, local 

context and views, scale, massing, height, density and materials. 

 

16. DEV 21 and DEV 22 of the JLP require development to sustain local character and distinctiveness 

of the area and conserve or enhance its historic environment, heritage assets  and their settings 

according to their national or local significance. 

 

17. The Hoe Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan states that proposals to redevelop 

sites will be required to preserve or enhance the character of the conservation area and contribute 

to the wider generation of the city.  The position scale and massing and materials will be expected to 

respect the existing character.  New development will be expected to be of highest quality design 

and high quality contemporary design will be encouraged. 

 

18. Paragraph 58 of the NPPF notes that planning decisions should ensure that developments 

respond to local character and history and reflect the identity of local surroundings and materials, 

while not preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation. Paragraph 60 goes on to note how it is 

proper to reinforce local distinctiveness and Paragraph 137 is also of relevance to this scheme, 

stating “local planning authorities should look for opportunities for new development within 

conservation areas….to enhance or better reveal their significance”.   Paragraph 129 states that a 

local planning authority should take into account the particular significance of a heritage asset when 

considering the impact of a proposal on it.  In the case of this development, it is the effect upon the 

setting of the listed buildings around the subject site and the character and appearance of the Hoe 

Conservation Area.  Paragraph 131 of the NPPF sets out the basic framework for determining 

applications that affect the historic environment, requiring local planning authorities to have regard 

to the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets, the positive 
contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to sustainable communities, and the 

desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character and distinctiveness.   

Paragraph 133 of the NPPF states that where a proposal will lead to substantial harm to or total loss 

of significance of a designated heritage asset local planning authorities should refuse consent unless it 

can be demonstrated that the substantial harm or loss is necessary to achieve substantial public 

benefits that outweigh that harm or loss.  Paragraph 134 also states that when the harm is less than 

substantial it should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal. 

 

19. Section 66 and Section 72 of the Town Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 

1990 requires that in considering whether to grant planning permission for development which 

affects a listed building or its setting, the local planning authority or, as the case may be, the 

Secretary of State shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting 

or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. These are not policies 

but a requirement of the act itself meaning that when considering these proposals, great weight must 

be given to the impact of the proposals on the character and appearance of the Hoe Conservation 

Area 

 

20. The proposed building would remain 7 storeys in height however it’s depth would be reduced by 

approximately 4.5 metres.  It is considered that this would reduce the bulk and massing of the 

approved building improving its overall appearance particularly when viewed from the east and west. 

 



 

 

21. Regrettably the attic storey whilst still setback from the front and back elevation would no longer 

be set in at the sides.  However given the reduction in depth of the side elevation this is not 

considered so detrimental to warrant refusal of the application. 

 

22. Some elevational changes are proposed including amendments to the window arrangement, the 

squaring off of the proposed central front projection, which was previously slightly curved, removal 

of the corner projections, and changes to the front entrance including its location slightly off centre 

losing the symmetry of the building. Following requests from officers the expressed horizontal band 

across the front of the building has been reinstated. This would reference the height of the 

balustraded parapet of Lockyer Court’s boundary wall in an attempt to provide some visual 

continuity between the old and new along the re-established street.  

 

23. The changes to the window arrangements generally increase the amount of glazing on the front 

and back elevations and as such is considered to be an improvement to the approved scheme, 

likewise the entrance is considered to be larger and  less mean than that approved.  The loss of 

symmetry to the front elevation is unfortunate however due to the width of the elevation it is 

unlikely to be particularly noticeable when viewed from the street. 

 

24. Historic England has been consulted and accept that the proposal offers a benefit in reducing the 

depth of the flank elevations. However they consider this modest improvement does not overcome 

their original concerns regarding the approved building,  they therefore consider the building would 

cause serious, albeit less than substantial, harm to the conservation  area. 

 

25. The Council’s Historic Environment Officer considers that the reduction in footprint and height 

is beneficial which means the proposals are unlikely to cause additional harm to the Conservation 

Area (from the approved scheme). However, they would still wish to see further refinements made 

to the scheme so that the top floor is recessed further back to lessen the visual bulk of the building.  

Officers have requested this however due to the impact it would have on the viability of the scheme 

the applicant has declined to make this amendment. 

 

26. The Historic Environment Officer has also highlighted that the parking provision should be 
carefully considered to ensure that it is appropriate as problems with a lack of parking here will in 

turn cause additional problems for the Conservation Area.  This is considered in detail below. 

 

27. The Hoe Neighbourhood Forum are now a statutory consultee for such applications and have 

raised issues regarding the level of information available to assess the impact of the scheme on the 

conservation area and heritage assets.   Officers consider that the level of information submitted is 

acceptable to properly assess the impact of the proposed amendments.  In terms of design and the 

historic environment the Hoe Neighbourhood Forum have highlighted the loss of the set-back to 

flats on the east and west sides of the 6th floor, reducing the stepped effect that was intended to 

reduce the visual impact of the upper floor / the overall height of the development on the 

Conservation Area. 

   

28. While the comments of Historic England, the Historic Environment Officer, and the Hoe 

Neighbourhood Forum have been given due consideration by officers the proposal has been reduced 

in depth by approximately 4.5 metres which officers consider improves its bulk and massing within 

the conservation area.  The elevational changes include some positive amendments such as increased 

glazing and an improved entrance and some less favourable changes such as the lack of setback on 

the flanks of the attic.  However the proposal has to be assessed on its own merits and officers 

consider the scale and massing, and design  of the proposed building would be appropriate and not 

look significantly out of place in this on the edge of the conservation area. 

 

 



 

 

Greenspace and Landscaping 

29. The previously approved landscaping proposal was formulated on the principles of opening up 

the space in front of the building (towards Notte Street) and allowing a series of spaces to be used 

by pedestrians as a resting place, and also a private area for residents of Peirson House to use.  The 

proposal has been amended to remove the stepped terraced effect but would retain a relatively large 

landscaped area at the front of the building.  Following requests from Officers additional public areas 

and seating is now proposed more in line with the approved scheme.  The amended landscaping plan 

now shows 5 semi-mature Birch to be planted within the landscaped planting areas which is 

welcomed and preferable to tree pits, originally approved in terms of long-term survival.  Additional 

landscaping has also been proposed on the terraced amenity area at the rear which is welcomed.    

 

Neighbouring Amenity 

Properties located on Alfred Street 

30. The building (not including the outdoor terrace) would be located a further 4.5 metres from the 

properties on Alfred Street than the approved scheme.  The building itself would be approximately 

30 to 31.5 metres away from the closest rear tenement found on the Alfred Street Terrace.    The 

Development Guidelines SPD advises that facing windows should be 28 metres apart however the 

guidance also recognizes that in more historical dense built up areas it is not unreasonable to assume 

that privacy might be less than in lower density neighbourhoods.   The building and associated 

balconies are considered to be an adequate distance away from the properties in Alfred Street to 

ensure that privacy will not be unreasonably affected by the proposal. 

 

31. The garden terrace would stretch to the boundary of the site and would be slightly above ground 

level.  Appropriate screening can be controlled by condition as per the previous approved scheme. 

 

32. Shadow analysis was provided for the original application.  This showed that due to the building 

being located almost due north of the dwellings on Alfred Street that shadowing was unlikely to be 

significant.  The reduction in depth of approximately 4.5 metres now proposed will improve this 

relationship. 

 

The properties on Athenaeum Street.    
33. The building would remain approximately 21 metres away from the main 3 storey tenements. It 

is recognised that there are some lower extensions closer than this but in the main these do not 

contain windows in the end elevations.  The proposed scheme however would reduce the depth of 

the building lessoning the impact of the proposal on some of the properties on Athenaeum street. At 

the request of officers the side of the end rear balconies have been removed to prevent the 

overlooking raised in the public objections.  The distance therefore exceeds the 15m guidance in the 

SPD and is considered acceptable.   

 

34. The shadowing diagram submitted with the original application shows that the building would 

cause additional shadow to the northern end of the terrace in the morning during summer.  For the 

majority of the day and the evening the proposal would cause little if any additional shadowing.  

Although it was recognised there will be some impact it was not considered significant enough to 

warrant refusal of the consented application. The current proposal would result in the top storey 

not being set in at the sides and therefore the perceived building height would be higher than the 

approved scheme.  However officers consider that this would be largely mitigated by the reduction 

in depth of the side elevation.  

 

35. It is likely that the shadowing would be a slight improvement on the approved scheme given the 

proposed reduction in width. 

 

 

 



 

 

Properties along Lockyer Street and the Eastern part of Mulgrave Street 

36. The proposed building would remain approximately 7 metres away from the western elevation of 

Lockyer Court and the adjacent buildings.  It should be noted that the current building is also located 

on the boundary albeit at a lower level.  Again the side elevation balconies have been removed. 

 

37. The guidance suggests that in order to protect outlook and for a building not to appear 

unreasonably overbearing the minimum distance between a main habitable window and a blank 

elevation for buildings over 3 storeys should be at least 15 metres.  The distance between habitable 

windows in properties to the east and the proposal would be 7 metres.  However during 

determination of the original application it was noted that this 7 metre relationship already exists 

between these properties and the existing 3 storey building to be demolished. It was considered that 

given its location in a higher density area the proposal would be acceptable.  The current scheme 

would result in the top storey not being set back at the sides and therefore the perceived building 

height would be higher than the approved scheme.  However it is considered that this would be 

largely mitigated by the reduction in depth of the side elevation.  

 

38. It is likely that the shadowing would be a slight improvement on the approved scheme due to the 

proposed reduction in width. 

 

Standard of Accommodation 

39. The accommodation would comprise of 36 one beds and 40 two beds in total   The LPA is no 

longer permitted to refer specifically to the internal size standards for dwellings as prescribed in the 

Development Guidelines SPD however for reference, all apartments would meet or exceed the size 

standards found in the SPD.  The emerging policy DEV10 (5)requires new dwellings to meet the 

Nationally Described Space Standards.  It should be noted however that there are currently 

unresolved objections to this element of DEV10 and therefore the policy currently affords less 

weight.   11 of the 76 apartments would be slightly below the National Size Standards.    The units 

are generally considered to offer an adequate standard of accommodation in terms of space.   Given 

that the majority of the apartments would meet or exceed the national space standards and that 

policy DEV 10 currently affords less weight the size of the proposal is therefore considered 

acceptable in this regard. 
 

40. Outdoor amenity space would be provided in the form of balconies for the majority of units with 

a communal terrace to the rear (now larger than the consented scheme due to the reduction in 

depth of the building. Although the balconies on the north side of the building would mostly be in 

shadow it is considered that due to the sites proximity to the Hoe, the provision of outdoor amenity 

space is acceptable. 

 

41. The deepest apartments would be served by large full length glazed doors and therefore officers 

consider that although fairly deep the apartments would have adequate light and outlook. 

 

Highways 

42. This application is specifically for the consideration of a ‘Variation of condition 2, as a ‘Minor 

Material Amendment’; of planning consent 16/00154/FUL, for the redevelopment of the former Care 

Home known as ‘Pierson House’, with an apartment block.  Therefore, Aside from those new 

impacts caused by the proposed changes to the consented scheme, all other impacts would remain 

the same and as already considered as part of the planning consent.  In respect of which some 

previous relevant comments and conditions are reiterated as appropriate. 

 

43. Pierson House is situated in a sustainable location, on the south side of Notte Street between 

the Hoe and the City Centre, within convenient walking distance of both.  The main pedestrian 

entrance would front onto Notte Street with vehicle access to the under-croft parking area on the 



 

 

west side of the building in Mulgrave Street (west).  A stepped pedestrian footpath would be 

provided on the west side of the building, linking Mulgrave Street west with Notte Street. 

 

44. Mulgrave Street and Alfred Street Lane run around the perimeter of the building along its east, 

west, and south side, which forms an east/west link between Lockyer Street and Athenaeum Street.  

And there are two service lane spurs that link Mulgrave Street with Alfred Street to the south.      

 

45. The proposed changes affecting highways include:  

• A reduction of the width (depth) of the building by approximately 4.5m, taken off the southern end,   

• Alterations to the width and position of the vehicle entrance/exit into the basement car park, 

• A reduction in the number of car parking spaces from 39 down to 32 (- 7),  

• The repositioning of the bin-store with alternative servicing from the east side of the building 

(rather from the west side as per the consented scheme),  

• Changes the residential mix, and the number of bed-spaces, to reduce the number of two-bedroom 

apartments, and increase the number of one-bedroom apartments,  

• Alterations to the landscaping and amenity areas. 

 

46. The reduction in the depth of the building by approximately 4.5m taken off the southern end, 

would in turn result in the vehicle entrance serving the basement car park being displaced by 

approximately 3 metres to the north.  The entrance was also initially shown reduced in width down 

to approximately 3 metres wide.  Following requests from officers this has now been widened to 4.2 

metres.  Tracking diagrams have been provided upon request which demonstrate that the width 

would now allow a car to make the necessary turns into and out of the car park without conflict 

with the on-street permit parking bays.   

 

47. The required 45 degree visibility splay at the car park entrance has been added.  While there is a 

supporting pillar situated within the splay, given the associated low travel speeds and movements this 

is considered acceptable. 

 

48. The proposed changes would result in a reduction in the number of car parking spaces from the 

39 of the consented application down to 32 (- 7) in this revised proposal.  Car parking was 
considered in some detail in the consented application, and those considerations remain relevant. 

The application site is situated in a highly sustainable location which also provides parking 

opportunities within the nearby public car parks, with some on-street parking also available in the 

local streets.  The local streets are also the subject of on-street parking restrictions including a 

‘Permit Parking Zone’.   

 

49. The development would be likely to give rise to an increased demand for car parking, and 

therefore would be excluded from eligibility for on-street parking permits; which would safeguard 

the on-street parking amenity of the existing local residents.  Due to the highly sustainable location 

the development would not necessarily need to provide off-street car parking, therefore the 

proposed reduction in the number of parking spaces serving the development would be acceptable.   

 

50. The revised application includes moving the bin-store, from the west side to the east side of the 

building.  This change would result in a refuse lorry accessing the building from the east side via 

Lockyer Street (rather than from Athenaeum Street on the west side); which may be the way in 

which the adjacent Lockyer Court is currently serviced.  

 

51. The east arm of Mulgrave Street, between Lockyer Street and the application site, has a standard 

footway along it south side only which is sufficient to afford access for larger service vehicles, bin 

lorries, or a fire engine.  Again, access for service and emergency vehicles was carefully considered as 

part of the consented development, and apart from the repositioning of the bin store, many of those 

previous considerations remain relevant, and are considered satisfactory. Emergency access and 



 

 

waste collection requirements are generally dictated by the Fire Service, and also by the ‘Building 

Regulations’, that set out the necessary requirements for both fire access and waste collection.  In 

this case it is considered that emergency and servicing access would continue to be satisfactory. 

 

52. The proposed changes to the residential mix and the comparatively small reduction in the 

number of bed-spaces, from reducing the number of two-bedroom apartments, and increasing the 

number of one-bedroom apartments, would have very little transport and highway impact.  Arguably, 

the use would be slightly less intensive, and could result in a very small reduction in associated 

vehicle trips and car parking demand.  It is considered that any such associated reductions would be 

so small as to be almost indiscernible and largely insignificant from the transport and highway 

perspective when compared to the flows on the local highway network. 

 

53. Proposed alterations to the landscaping and amenity area at the front of the building onto Notte 

Street, shown on the revised drawings, to create a segregated and tiered soft landscaped area, would 

also result in the loss of the stepped pedestrian access at the east end of the site. 

 

54. Previously raised concerns still apply in respect of a car emerging from Mulgrave Street onto 

Athenaeum Street, which would be the most convenient route to and from the basement car park of 

the development, due to poor visibility to the south and north at the junction.  However, the 

applicant has previously agreed to accept a planning condition to explore and fund any necessary 

associated highway safety improvements there.  The lack of visibility to the south (left when 

emerging) is caused by formal on-street car parking close to the road junction, which is an existing 

situation that is outside of the applicant’s control. This could only be resolved by the loss of on-

street parking spaces following a successful change to the associated Traffic Regulation Order (TRO), 

which would be unlikely to gain public support, and no changes are therefore proposed.  However 

the visibility to the north (right when emerging) could be helped by realigning the vehicle wheel track 

on the corner of Athenaeum Street and Notte Street, by introducing a hatched white-line margin in 

the carriageway to encourage a tighter wheel track turning movement for cars.  This would help 

reduce the speed, particularly of light vehicles cars and vans, turning from Notte Street into 

Athenaeum Street.  

 
55. Concerns have been raised by local residents that the increased vehicle flows generated by the 

proposed apartments could result in vehicle collisions.  From empirical evidence due to the layout 

and configuration of the Mulgrave Street vehicle speeds are typically very low.  In some places vehicle 

flows rely on give-and-take movements, with one vehicle waiting on another, due to the formal on-

street parking spaces restricting two-way vehicle movements.  Should the need arise then further 

mitigation traffic management measures could be considered, for which a TRO may be required.  

This is covered by an existing condition. 

 

Affordable Housing and accessible homes 

56. Affordable housing is one of the top priorities for Plymouth City Council. Policy CS15 states that 

on developments of 15 or more units, at least 30% of the total number of dwellings should be 

affordable, with a presumption that these should be provided on site. However, policy CS15 and 

paragraph 50 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) allow for commuted sums for off-

site provision in lieu of on-site affordable housing where it is robustly justified and contributes to the 

creation of balanced, mixed and sustainable communities. 

 

57. The previous planning permission secured an off-site affordable housing contribution of £500,000 

following protracted development viability negotiations. PCC’s Development Viability Officer advised 

that a policy compliant 30% affordable housing scheme with other section 106 requirements and 

Community Infrastructure Levy would result in a near zero land value, which would not be 

acceptable to the landowner and would not comply with the NPPF viability guidance.    

 



 

 

58. Therefore after careful consideration, a section 106 contribution of £500,000 for off-site 

affordable housing delivery was agreed by negotiation with the developer. At the time of determining 

the full application, the £500,000 contribution was equivalent to 10-14% on-site affordable housing 

and was considerably higher than the applicant’s initial offer.  

 

59. This Section 73 application proposes to keep the off-site affordable housing contribution at 

£500,000, which is a marginal increase in the proportion of affordable housing given the revised 

housing mix (i.e. a proposed reduction in the number of two bedroom flats in favour of one 

bedroom flats) has reduced the open market value of dwellings and the gross development value of 

the scheme.  

 

60. A fresh viability assessment taking into account the proposed amendments has been assessed by 

the viability officer who has concluded that £500,000 (together with £130,000 in s106 contributions) 

is the maximum that can be achieved without affecting viability. 

 

61. The Council’s Housing Delivery Team continues to support its initial recommendation to accept 

the £500,000 contribution. This offer was accepted on the basis that such offsite contributions have 

been put to good use to bridge viability gaps and unlock stalled and brownfield sites such as 

Stonehouse Arena (56 affordable homes) and Hoegate House (30 affordable homes). These sites 

often have high abnormal costs associated with former uses, thus off-site contributions can be used 

to good effect.  

 

62. In addition, there is an abundance of affordable and supported housing in proximity of the 

development site and in the wider PL1 postcode area, therefore the delivery of open-market units 

would help to create a balanced, mixed and sustainable local community. The application proposes to 

deliver one- and two- bedroom apartments whereas a commuted sum of £500,000 could help to 

deliver family housing elsewhere in the city, where the need for affordable housing is greater.  

 

63. Policy CS15 states that affordable housing must be “indistinguishable from other development on 

the site” whilst the Planning Obligations and Affordable Housing SPD reiterates that housing should 

be tenure blind. The Housing Delivery Team also has concerns over how the affordable housing 
units could be incorporated within the development and how service charges could be maintained at 

affordable levels alongside open market dwellings. 

 

64. The Section 73 application proposes replacing 10 of the two bedroom flats with 10 one bedroom 

flats to provide 36 one beds and 40 two beds in total. This is supported given the high demand for 

one bedroom properties in central Plymouth. Policy DEV7 of the emerging Joint Local Plan outlines a 

particular need to deliver small dwellings to accommodate younger and older people.  

 

Other Issues 

65. In the wake of the Grenfell Tower fire tragedy, issues have quite rightly been raised about fire 

safety of the building.  With regard to the cladding system Officers are of the view that it is beyond 

the scope of the planning system, and will instead be the subject of detailed analysis as part of the 

requirement for building regulations approval once the applicant has appointed either the Council or 

an alternative Approved Inspector to complete this process.  

 

66. Separately officers have however sought advice from PCC Building Control officers and based on 

assumptions from the section plans, it appears that the building is more than 18 metres in height ( 

when measured from upper floor surface to ground level on the lowest side of the building) 

therefore it does appear to fall under the remit for BR135.  With this assumption made the makeup 

of the cladding system would constitute a ‘tall building’ and therefore regulations appropriate to the 

size of the building will be adopted. 

 



 

 

67. Officers intend to secure sample panels of cladding for the building, but under the current regime 

and guidance this will be for the purposes of determining their suitability in terms of aesthetics and 

related durability. In the event that guidance has changed by the time that samples are approved such 

that fire safety and cladding does become an issue within the scope of the planning system, it would 

of course be possible to also consider the flammability of any product against any relevant guidance. 

 

Bin Storage 

68. A bin storage area has been proposed to adequately accommodate the appropriate amount of 

wheeled bins for refuse and recycling. 

 

9. Human Rights 

Human Rights Act - The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights 

Act, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself. This Act gives 

further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on Human Rights. In arriving at this 

recommendation, due regard has been given to the applicant's reasonable development rights and 

expectations which have been balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as 

expressed through third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government Guidance. 

 

10. Local Finance Considerations 

The Local Planning Authority has assessed that this development will attract an obligation to pay a 

financial levy under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended). 

 

11. Planning Obligations 

The purpose of planning obligations is to mitigate or compensate for adverse impacts of a 

development, or to prescribe or secure something that is needed to make the development 

acceptable in planning terms.  Planning obligations can only lawfully constitute a reason for granting 

planning permission where the three statutory tests of Regulation 122 of the CIL Regulations 2010 

are met. 

 

Planning obligations were agreed on application these required the following contributions: 

 
£130,000 towards the construction of the Charles Cross Roundabout scheme 

£500,000 towards offsite affordable housing provision 

 

These contributions were secured following the submission of viability information.  Due to the 

proposed changes the viability of the scheme has been re-assessed and it is considered that the 

original contributions are still relevant and acceptable. 

 

Officers are confident that this level of mitigation is the maximum that could be achieved on this site 

without affecting delivery.  

 

12. Equalities and Diversities 

No further issues. 

 

13. Conclusions 

Officers have considered the development against the guidance of the NPPF and in particular 

paragraph 134, which states that when the harm to a heritage asset is less than substantial it should 

be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal. 

 

As with the approved scheme the public benefits of the proposal include market and affordable 

housing (through an offsite contribution) which would help to address the city’s housing shortfall and 

also increase the vibrancy and vitality of the area.  The site is well located in terms of access and the 

redevelopment would contribute towards a sustainable and linked community.  On balance therefore 



 

 

officers consider that the proposal complies with relevant policies in the Local Development 

Framework, the emerging JLP, and the NPPF including the impact on heritage assets.  

 

Officers have taken account of the NPPF and S38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 

2004 and concluded that the proposal accords with policy and national guidance and is therefore 

recommended for conditional approval subject to s106. 

 

14. Recommendation 

In respect of the application dated 08.09.2017 it is recommended to Grant Subject to S106 

Obligation with delegated authority to Assistant Director for Strategic Planning & 

Infrastructure to refuse if timescales are not met 

 

15. Conditions / Reasons 

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved 

plans:  

 

1 CONDITION: APPROVED PLANS 

 

Ground Floor Plan 2147B-110 Rev B received 30/10/17 

Proposed Site Plan 2147B-105 Rev A received 30/10/17 

Landscape Management Plan 2147B-106 Rev A received 30/10/17 

Proposed Elevations 2147B-126 Rev A received 30/10/17 

6th Floor Plans 2147B-113 Rev A received 30/10/17 

Proposed Elevations 2147B-125 Rev A received 30/10/17 

Visualisations 2147B/190 rev A received 30/10/17 

Visualisations 2147B/191 rev A received 30/10/17 

Visualisations 2147B/192 rev A received 30/10/17 

Site Location Plan 2147B-100 - received 08/09/17 

Site plan 2147B-101 - received 08/09/17 

1st Floor Plan 2147B-111 - received 08/09/17 

Proposed Floor Plans 2147B-112 - received 08/09/17 

Landscaping 2147B-107 - received 02/11/17 

Roof Plan 2147B-114 Rev A received 06/11/17 

Sections 2147B-130 - received 06/11/17 

Sections 2147B-131 - received 06/11/17 

 

Reason: 

For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of good planning, in accordance with policy CS34 of 

the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and paragraphs 61-

66 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 



 

 

 2 CONDITION: DEVELOPMENT TO COMMENCE WITHIN 2 YEARS 

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of two years beginning from 

04/11/2016. 

 

Reason: 

To comply with Section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and in accordance with 

Core Strategy Objective 10(8) (Delivering Adequate Housing Supply) and Policy SPT3 of the 

Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan 

 

 

 3 PRE-COMMENCEMENT: SURFACING MATERIALS 

No development shall take place until further details and samples of all materials to be used to 

surface external areas have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority. For the avoidance of doubt the materials shall be inaccordance with those shown on the 

approved elevation drawing which includes high performing silicone based render.   Development 

shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

 

Reason: 

To ensure that the materials used are in keeping with the character of the area in accordance with 

Policy CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and 

paragraphs 61 to 66 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 

Justification: To ensure all materials are acceptable prior to work commencing. 

 

 

 4 PRE-COMMENCEMENT: DRAINAGE 

Prior to the commencement of development, a detailed scheme for surface water drainage shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The details shall include: 

 

- details of the drainage during the construction phase; 

- details of the final scheme, including how the scheme can provide a connection into a future 
strategic surface drainage system (in order to remove surface water flows from the combined sewer) 

as well as the provision for exceedance pathways and overland flow routes; 

- a construction quality control procedure; 

- a plan for the future maintenance and management of the system and overland flow routes. 

 

Prior to occupation, or a timetable to be agreed, the scheme shall have been completed in 

accordance with the approved details.  The scheme shall thereafter be managed and maintained in 

accordance with the approved details unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority. 

 



 

 

Reason:  

To prevent the increased risk of flooding and minimise the risk of pollution of surface water by 

ensuring the provision of a satisfactory means of surface water control and disposal during and after 

development in accordance with the requirements of Policy CS21 of the Plymouth Local 

Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007. 

 

Justification: To ensure that the drainage scheme required for the development is deliverable prior to 

any work commencing. 

 

 

 5 PRE-COMMENCEMENT: CONTAMINATED LAND 

5) Unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority, development other than that required 

to be carried out as part of an approved scheme of remediation shall not take place until sections 1 

to 3 of this condition have been complied with. If unexpected contamination is found after 

development has begun, development must be halted on that part of the site affected by the 

unexpected contamination to the extent specified by the Local Planning Authority in writing until 

section 4 of this condition has been complied with in relation to that contamination. 

 

Section 1. Site Characterisation 

An investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any assessment provided with the planning 

application, shall be completed in accordance with a scheme to assess the nature and extent of any 

contamination on the site, whether or not it originates on the site. The contents of the scheme are 

subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The investigation and risk 

assessment must be undertaken by competent persons and a written report of the findings must be 

produced. The written report is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 

The report of the findings must include: 

(i) a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination; 

(ii) an assessment of the potential risks to: 

o human health 

o property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service 

lines and pipes 

o adjoining land 

o groundwaters and surface waters 

o ecological systems 

o archaeological sites and ancient monuments; 

(iii) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s). 

This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 'Model 

Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11'. 

 

Section 2. Submission of Remediation Scheme 

A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by 

removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property and the natural and 

historical environment shall be prepared, and is subject to the approval in writing of the Local 



 

 

Planning Authority. The scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation 

objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures. The 

scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 

Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation. 

 

Section 3. Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme 

The approved remediation scheme shall be carried out in accordance with its terms prior to the 

commencement of development other than that required to carry out remediation, unless otherwise 

agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Local Planning Authority must be given two 

weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme works. 

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a verification 

report (referred to in the replaced PPS23 as a validation report) that demonstrates the effectiveness 

of the remediation carried out must be produced, and is subject to the approval in writing of the 

Local Planning Authority. 

 

Section 4. Reporting of Unexpected Contamination 

In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved development 

that was not previously identified it shall be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning 

Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance with the 

requirements of section 1 of this condition, and where remediation is necessary a remediation 

scheme must be prepared in accordance with the requirements of section 2, which is subject to the 

approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification 

report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority 

in accordance with section 3. 

 

Reason: 

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring land 

are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to 

ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, 

neighbours and other offsite receptors, in accordance with policy CS34 of the Plymouth Local 
Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and paragraphs 120 - 123 of the National 

Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 

Justification: To ensure that risk to health through contamination are properly considered and 

addressed before building works commence. 

 

 

 6 PRE-COMMENCEMENT: CODE OF PRACTICE DURING CONSTRUCTION 

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved a detailed management plan for 

the construction phase of the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. The Code of practice must comply with all sections of the Public 

Protection Service, Code of Practice for construction and demolition sites, with particular regards to 

the hours of working, crushing and piling operations, control of mud on roads and the control of 

dust. All sensitive properties surrounding the site boundary shall be notified in writing of the nature 



 

 

and duration of works to be undertaken, and the name and address of a responsible person, to 

whom an enquiry/complaint should be directed. The 

development shall be constructed in accordance with the management plan. 

 

Reason: 

To protect the residential and general amenity of the area from any harmfully polluting effects during 

construction works and avoid conflict with Policy CS22 of the Plymouth Local Development 

Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and paragraphs 120 -123 of the National Planning 

Policy Framework 2012 . 

 

Justification: To ensure that the construction phase does not unduly impact amenity of the area. 

 

 

 7 PRE-COMMENCEMENT: EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS PLAN (ESP) 

No development shall take place until an ESP has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. The ESP should demonstrate how local people will benefit from the 

development in terms of job opportunities, apprenticeship placements, work experience and other 

employment and skills priorities. The ESP should cover the construction of the development. The 

development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved ESP unless a variation 

in the plan is agreed in writing in advance by the Local Planning Authority. Quarterly monitoring 

reports will be submitted to the Local Planning Authority, recording actual achievements against the 

targets outlined in the ESP. The first report shall be submitted three months after construction starts 

on site. 

 

Reason: 

To ensure employment and skills development in accordance with Strategic Objective 6 and Policy 

CS04 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and in 

accordance with Policy 19 of the Plymouth Plan Part One (2011-2031). 

 

Justification: To ensure that the employment and skills plan is adhered to throughout the demolition 

and construction of the development. 

 

 

 8 PRE-COMMENCEMENT: ARCHEOLOGY 

No development shall commence until a programme of archaeological work has beem secured and 

implemented to include archaeological trial trench evaluation, aimed at providing information of the 

location, nature and extent of any surviving archaeological remains and/or human burial remains 

which may be present.  

 

The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved scheme, or such other 

details as may be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 



 

 

All of the above to be  in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which shall previously 

have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 

 

Reason: 

The site may contain archaeological deposits and/or human burial remains which would warrant 

appropriate investigation and/or recording in accordance with Policy CS03 of the Plymouth Local 

Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and paragraph 128 of the National 

Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 

Justification: To ensure that any archaeological interest that might be present will not be 

compromised by construction. 

 

 

 9 PRE-DPC LEVEL: LANDSCAPE DESIGN PROPOSALS 

No development shall take place above DPC level until full details of both hard and soft landscape 

works and a programme for their implementation have been submitted to and approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as approved. These details shall 

include [proposed finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other vehicle 

and pedestrian access and circulation areas; hard surfacing materials; minor artefacts and structures 

(e.g. furniture, play equipment, refuse or other storage units, signs, lighting etc.); proposed and 

existing functional services above and below ground (e.g. drainage, power, communications cables, 

pipelines etc., indicating lines, manholes, supports etc.); retained historic landscape features and 

proposals for restoration, where relevant; planting plans including the location of all proposed plants 

their species, numbers, densities, type (i.e bare root/container grown or root balled, girth size and 

height (in accordance with the HTA National Plant specification), planting specification including 

topsoil depths, soiling operations, cultivation, soil amelorants and all works of ground preparation, 

and plant specification including handling, planting, seeding, turfing, mulching and plant protection]. 

 

All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. The 

works shall be carried out prior to the occupation of any part of the development or in accordance 

with the programme agreed with the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: 

To ensure that satisfactory landscape works are carried out in accordance with Policies CS18 and 

CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and 

paragraphs 61, 109 and 118 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012 

 

 

10 PRE-DPC LEVEL: FURTHER DETAILS 

No development shall take place above DPC level until details of the following aspects of the 

development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, viz:  

details of cill, window/door reveals, balconies, screens, electronic gate, rainwater goods, attic details  

all at a minimum scale of 1:5.  

 



 

 

The works shall conform to the approved details. 

 

Reason: 

To ensure that these further details are acceptable to the Local Planning Authority and that they are 

in keeping with the standards of the vicinity in accordance with Policy CS34 of the Plymouth Local 

Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and paragraphs 61-66, 109, 110 and 123 

of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012 

 

 

11 PRE-OCCUPATION: REAR BOUNDARY SCREEN 

Prior to occupation of the development hereby approved a rear boundary screen shall be installed in 

accordance with details previously submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority.  The screen shall thereafter be retained. 

 

Reason: 

To protect the amenity of neighbouring residents in accordance with CS34 of the Plymouth Local 

Development Framework Core Strategy. 

 

 

12 PRE-OCCUPATION: BUILDING MAINTENANCE 

Prior to occupation of the building hereby approved a programme and management plan  for 

maintenance of the external elevations of the building hereby approved shall be submitted to and 

agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The building shall thereafter be maintained in 

accordance with the approved details. 

 

Reason: 

To ensure the external surfaces of the building are maintained so as to protect the visual amenity of 

the Conservation Area in accordance with policies CS03 and CS34 of the Plymouth Local 

Development Framework Core Strategy. 

 

 

13 PRE-OCCUPATION: ACCESS/HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS (GRAMPIAN) 

The use hereby permitted shall not commence until the process to explore and implement as agreed 

appropriate proposed access improvements to the existing highway has begun in accordance with 

the further details to be submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 

comprising of an area of carriageway hatching at the junction of Notte Street & Athenaeum Street 

and a potential one-way Traffic Regulation Order for Mulgrave Street & Alfred Street Lane (north). 

 

Reason: 

In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety in accordance with Policy CS28 of the Plymouth 

Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007. 

 



 

 

14 PRE-OCCUPATION: CYCLE PROVISION 

No dwelling shall be occupied until space has been laid out within the site in accordance with the 

approved plan for 42 bicycles to be securely parked. The secure area for storing bicycles shown on 

the approved plan shall remain available for its intended purpose and shall not be used for any other 

purpose without the prior consent of the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: 

 In order to promote cycling as an alternative to the use of private cars in accordance with Policy 

CS28 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007. 

 

 

15 PRE-OCCUPATION: DESIGNING OUT CRIME 

Prior to occupation an electronic access gate shall be fitted to the entrance to the under-croft car 

parking area and thereafter retained. 

 

Reason: 

To ensure that satisfactory measures are put in place to design out crime in accordance with policy 

of the Local Development Framework Core Strategy 2007. 

 

 

16 PRE-OCCUPATION: PROVISION OF PARKING AREA 

Each parking space shown on the approved plans shall be constructed, drained, surfaced and made 

available for use before the unit of accommodation that it serves is first occupied and thereafter that 

space shall not be used for any purpose other than the parking of vehicles. 

 

Reason:  

To enable vehicles used by occupiers or visitors to be parked off the public highway so as to avoid 

damage to amenity and interference with the free flow of traffic on the highway in accordance with 

Policies CS28 and CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 

2007. 

 

 

17 PRE-OCCUPATION: SUSTAINABILITY 

The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Energy 

Statement 22-11-2014 or a subsequently approved Energy Statement, and the on-site renewable 

energy methods installed prior to occupation of the dwellings. 

  

Reason: 

To deliver on-site renewable energy in accordance with policy CS20 of the Local Development 

Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007 and Government advice contained in the NPPF 

 



 

 

18 CONDITION: NOISE HABITABLE ROOMS 

 AII dwellings shall be constructed in accordance with BS8233:2014 so as to provide sound insulation 

against externally generated noise. The levels as described in Table 4 of the guidance shall be applied, 

meaning there must be no more than 35 Db Laeq for living rooms and bedrooms (0700 to 2300 

daytime) and 30 Db Laeq for bedrooms (2300 to 0700 night-time), with windows shut and other 

means of ventilation provided. Levels of 45 Db Laf.max shall not be exceeded in bedrooms (2300 to 

0700 night-time). 

 

Prior to any occupation of dwellings, the developer should submit, for written approval by the LPA, a 

verification report proving that the dwelling meets the aforementioned criteria. 

 

Reason: 

 To ensure that the proposed dwellings hereby permitted achieve a satisfactory living standard and 

do not experience unacceptable levels of noise disturbance to comply with policies CS22 and CS34 

of the adopted City of Plymouth Core Strategy Development Plan Document 2007 

 

 

19 CONDITION: BIODIVERSITY 

Unless otherwise previously agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, the development 

shall be carried out in accordance with the Ecological Mitigation and Enhancement Strategy (dated 

December 2014) for the site. 

 

Reason: 

In the interests of the retention, protection and enhancement of wildlife and features of biological 

interest, in accordance with Core Strategy policies CS01, CS19, CS34 and Government advice 

contained in the NPPF. 

 

 

20 CONDITION: TREE REPLACEMENT 

If within a period of five years from the date of the planting of any tree that tree, or any tree planted 

in replacement for it, is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies, or becomes, in the opinion of the 
Local Planning Authority, seriously damaged or defective, another tree of the same species and size 

as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives 

its written consent to any variation. 

 

Reason: 

To ensure that satisfactory landscaping works are carried out in accordance with Policies CS18 and 

CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and 

paragraphs 61, 109 and 118 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012, and are subsequently 

properly maintained, if necessary by replacement. 

 

 

 



 

 

21 CONDITION: PRESERVATION OF SIGHT LINES 

No structure, erection or other obstruction exceeding 600mm in height shall be placed, and no 

vegetation shall be allowed to grow above that height, within the approved sight lines to the site 

access at any time. 

 

Reason: 

To preserve adequate visibility for drivers of vehicles at the road junction in the interests of public 

safety in accordance with Policies CS28 and CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework 

Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007. 

 

 

22 CONDITON: DRIVEWAY GRADIENT/RAMP TO CAR PARK 

The driveway ramp to the under-croft car park hereby permitted shall not be steeper than 1 in 10 at 

any point. 

 

Reason:  

To ensure that safe and usable off street parking facilities are provided in accordance with Policies 

CS28 and CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007 

 

 

23 CONDITION: UNDERCROFT GATE TYPE (ADJACENT TO HIGHWAY) 

The electronic gate to the undercroft parking hereby permitted shall be of a type that does not 

project beyond the face of the garage when open or being opened. 

 

Reason: 

To ensure that the door does not project over the adjacent highway at any time in the interest of 

public safety in accordance with Policy CS28 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core 

Strategy (2006-2021) 2007 

 

 

24 CONDITION: PART M (ACCESSIBLE AND ADAPTABLE DWELLINGS) 

Unless otherwise agreed in writing 20% of the dwellings hereby approved shall be Part M4(2) 

compliant in accordance with details previously submitted and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: 

To ensure that 20% of the dwellings on site are built to the equivalent of  Lifetime Homes standards 

to comply with policy CS15 of the adopted City of Plymouth Core Strategy  Development Plan 

Document 2007 and Government advice contained in the NPPF. 

 

 



 

 

Informatives 

 

 1 INFORMATIVE: (CIL LIABLE) DEVELOPMENT LIABLE FOR COMMUNITY 

INFRASTRUCTURE CONTRIBUTION 

 

The Local Planning Authority has assessed that this development will attract an obligation to pay a 

financial levy under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended).  Details of 

the process can be found on our website at www.plymouth.gov.uk/CIL.  You can contact the Local 

Planning Authority at any point to discuss your liability calculation; however a formal Liability Notice 

will only be issued by the Local Planning Authority once "planning permission first permits 

development" as defined by the CIL Regulations.  You must ensure that you submit any relevant 

forms and get any pre-commencement details agreed before commencing work.  Failure to do so 

may result in surcharges or enforcement action. 

 

 

 2 INFORMATIVE: CONDITIONAL APPROVAL NEGOTIATION 

 

In accordance with the requirements of Article 31 of the Town and Country Planning (Development 

Management Procedure) (England) Order 2010 and paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning 

Policy Framework the Council has worked in a positive and pro-active way with the Applicant 

[including pre-application discussions]  and has negotiated amendments to the application to enable 

the grant of planning permission. 

 

 

 3 INFORMATIVE: KERB LOWERING 

 

Before the access hereby approved are first brought into use it will be necessary to secure dropped 

kerbs [and footway crossings] with the consent of the Local Highway Authority.  The applicant 

should contact Plymouth Highways for the necessary approval.  Precise details of all works within the 

public highway must be agreed with the Highway Authority. 

 

 

 4 INFORMATIVE: PUBLIC HIGHWAY APPROVAL 

 

This planning permission does not authorise the applicant to carry out works within the publicly 

maintained highway.  The applicant should contact Plymouth Highways for the necessary approval. 

Precise details of all works within the public highway must be agreed with the Highway Authority and 

an appropriate Permit must be obtained before works commence. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 5 INFORMATIVE: IMPACT ON HIGHWAY STRUCTURE 

 

The proposed development work would have a direct impact on the structure of the Highway 

Maintainable at Public Expense and the applicant would need to contact the managers of the highway 

network prior to any works starting. 

 

 

 6 INFORMATIVE: PUBLIC HIGHWAY 

 All new ground levels and thresholds would need to be designed to meet and tie into the existing 

ground levels of the public highway where required. The disposal of all surface water including roof 

water must be accommodated within the confines of the application site; no private apparatus of any 

kind including drainage lines/pipes, or inspection chambers would be permitted within the public 

highway. 

 

 

 7 INFORMATIVE: RESIDENT PARKING PERMIT SCHEME 

The applicant should be made aware that the property lies within a resident parking permit scheme 

which is currently over-subscribed. As such the development will be excluded from obtaining 

permits and purchasing visitor tickets for use within the scheme. 

 

 

 8 INFORMATIVE: SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

 

The following supporting documents have been considered in relation to this application: 

Preliminary Ecological Appraisal November 2014 

Ecological Mitigation and Enhancement Strategy December 2014 

Phase 1 Environmental Desktop Report 6th November 2014 

Noise Impact Assessment 90751R0 10th December 2014  

Landscape Management Plan 2147/170 

Heritage Statement 2147/160 

Energy Statement 22-11-2014 

Air Quality Assessement 34181R1 December 2014. 

Design and Access Statement 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

   

 

PLANNING APPLICATION 

OFFICERS REPORT 
 
 

Site Address 22B Woodside  Plymouth  PL4 8QE       

Proposal Creation of 2 bedrooms in roofspace 

Applicant Mr Essy Kamaie 

Application Type Full Application 

Target Date    14.11.2017 
Committee 

Date 
16.11.2017 

Extended Target Date N/A   

Decision Category Member referral 

Case Officer Mr Chris Cummings 

Recommendation Grant Conditionally 

 

 

 

 

 

Application 

Number   
17/01858/FUL  Item 03 

Date Valid 19.09.2017  Ward DRAKE 



 

 

This application has been called to Planning Committee by Councillor Ricketts  

 

1.  Description of Site 

22B Woodside is a 2-bedroom first floor flat located in the middle of a terrace of flats constructed in 

2012. The topography of the site slopes from north to south. The flat is accessed from the front of 

the terrace by a shared entrance with the ground floor flat no.22A Woodside. 

The rear of the terrace has a shared courtyard parking area with shared cycle and bin storage. The 

rear faces a rear access lane shared with dwellings on Diamond Avenue. The front of the site faces 

over the Woodside road to the front of other dwellings.  

 

2.  Proposal Description 

Creation of 2 bedrooms in roofspace 

 

3. Pre-application enquiry 

None 

 

4. Relevant planning history    

07/02210/OUT - Outline application to develop land for residential purposes. (10 two bed units) – 

Granted conditionally 

 

09/01443/FUL - Development of site by erection of ten 2 bed apartments with associated car 

parking, refuse and cycle storage – Granted conditionally 

 

11/00922/FUL - Construction of new rear boundary wall (demolition of existing stone wall) – 

Granted conditionally 

 

12/00025/FUL - Construction of new rear boundary wall (demolition of existing stone wall), with 

removal of condition 3 of planning permission 11/00922/FUL to allow wall not to be clad in stone – 

Granted conditionally 

 

21-22 Woodside 
17/00321/ENF – Alleged unauthorised use of 2-bed flats as 3-bed HMOS – Under investigation 

 

5. Consultation responses 

Local Highway Authority – No objection as no change of use occurring and demand is considered to 

remain the same as before. 

 

6. Representations 

Two letters of representation have been received raising concerns about the proposal due to: 

- Property allegedly in use as 3-bed HMO, not 2-bed flat 

- Overdevelopment of the street 

- Overcrowding on the site 

 

7. Relevant Policy Framework 

Section 70 of the 1990 Town and Country Planning Act requires that regard be had to the 

development plan, any local finance and any other material considerations. Section 38(6) of the 2004 

Planning and Compensation Act requires that applications are to be determined in accordance with 

the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

The development plan comprises of the Local Development Framework Core Strategy (Adopted 

April 2007)  

The Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan (the JLP) will replace the Core Strategy and 

other Plymouth Development Plan Documents as the statutory development plan for Plymouth once 

it is formally adopted. 



 

 

  

Annex 1 of the National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) provides guidance on 

determining the weight in relation to existing and emerging development plan policies.   

For Plymouth’s current development plan documents, due weight should be given to relevant policies 

according to their degree of consistency with the Framework (the closer the policies in the plan to 

the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may be given). 

For the JLP which is an emerging development plan, the weight is to be determined by the stage of 

its preparation, the extent to which there are unresolved objections, and its degree of consistency 

with the Framework. 

The JLP is at an advanced stage of preparation having now been submitted to the Planning 

Inspectorate for Examination, pursuant to Regulation 22 of the Town and Country Planning (Local 

Planning) (England) Regulations.  It is considered to be a sound plan, consistent with the policies of 

the Framework, and is based on up to date evidence.  It is therefore considered that the JLP’s 

policies have the potential to carry significant weight within the planning decision, particularly if there 

are no substantive unresolved objections. The precise weight will need to be determined on a case 

by case basis, having regard to all of the material considerations as well as the nature and extent of 

any unresolved objections on the relevant plan policies. 

Other material considerations include the policies of the Framework itself, guidance in National 

Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG). Additionally, the following planning documents are also material 

considerations in the determination of the application:  

- Development Guidelines Supplementary Planning Document 

 

8. Analysis 

1. This application has been considered in the context of the development plan, the Joint Local Plan, 

the Framework and other material policy documents as set out in Section 7. 

 

2. The property is an existing 2-bedroom flat set out over on the first floor. It is proposed to install 

2 additional bedrooms in the roof, creating a 4-bedroom dwelling. 

 

3. Letters of representation make reference to the flats being in use as 3-bed HMO. The submitted 

plans show the property as a 2-bedroom flat (Use Class C3). At the time of writing the case officer 
has not been permitted to carry out an internal inspection of the property to confirm the plans are 

correct. The case officer intends to undertaken an internal site visit prior to Planning Committee and 

will update members verbally. 

 

4. The site is within an area covered by the Article 4 Direction, which from 2012 required planning 

permission for any property changing from Use Class C3 (those living together as a single household) 

to Use Class C4 (three to six unrelated individuals). Planning compliance case 17/00321/ENF is 

currently investigating the rest of the flats and whether they fall under Use Class C3 or C4 and if any 

change to Use Class C4 occurred after the introduction of the Article 4 Direction and required 

planning approval. 

 

5. As the submitted plans show the property falling under Use Class C3 (single household) the 

application is being considered as a Use Class C3 dwelling and any future change in the use of the 

property to Use Class C4 (HMO of 3-6 individuals would require planning permission. An 

informative is proposed to be added to this application to advise the applicant of these restrictions 

and the requirement for planning permission for any change to an HMO. 

 

Internal Layout 

6. The two additional bedrooms are proposed in the roof space and will see the flat entrance door 

moved to accommodate the staircase to the loft in the existing lobby area. 

 



 

 

7. The Nationally Described Space Standards requires a floor space of 97sqm in areas of at least 1.5 

metres of height. The internal layout of the flat provides approximately 90sqm of floor space shown 

on the plans having at least 1.8 metres of height. The Space Standards are designed for the creation 

of new dwellings and, on balance, is considered acceptable. 

 

8. The two proposed bedrooms will be approximately 12.45sqm and 15.7sqm in size, exceeding 

these Nationally Described Space Standard requirements for bedrooms to be of a minimum of 

7.5sqm.  

 

9. The proposed bedrooms have en-suite facilities and there is an existing kitchen and lounge on the 

first floor. The property is considered to provide adequate internal facilities for the increase in 

bedrooms for a Use Class C3 dwelling. 

 

10. The proposal is considered to meet the requirements of Policy CS15(5) of the Core Strategy and 

Policy DEV10(5) of the submitted Joint Local Plan as well as paragraphs 2.5.24, 2.6.2 and 2.6.3 of the 

Development Guidelines SPD.  

 

External Amenity Space 

11. The existing 2-bedroom flat has a rear first floor balcony that provides outdoor amenity space of 

3.5 sqm. Although there is no increase to the outdoor amenity space the site is located 130m 

walking distance from Freedom Fields Park. On balance it is considered that the close location of the 

large park offsets the lack of onsite outdoor amenity and it is considered acceptable. 

 

Neighbour amenity 

12. The proposed development includes the installation of three velux windows front roof slope and 

3 velux windows on the rear roof slope, approximately 1.2 metres from floor level. To the front 

there is existing overlooking from the first floor windows of the site and the closest property 

opposite is approximately 19.6 metres away, separated by a road. To the rear there are existing first 

floor windows overlooking an existing car park and rear access lane, with the closest dwelling 

approximately 22.2 metres away. The Development Guidelines SPD recommends a minimum of 21 

metres distance between habitable room windows for a two-storey development, increased to 28 
metres for a three-storey development. Due to the existing level of overlooking, combined with the 

angled nature of velux roof lights it is considered that there will not be a significant level of harm to 

amenity or privacy generated by their installation. 

 

13. The property is an existing 2-bedroom flat in a terrace of flats. The increase to 4-bedrooms 

would create a single-family dwelling (Use Class C3) spread over two floors. Although this is an 

intensification of the use of the property the use as a single family dwelling is, on balance, not 

considered to significantly increase the noise or amenity impacts to the surrounding community. 

 

Transport requirements 

14. The site has an existing car park to the rear with 14 off-street parking spaces. The original 2-bed 

flat would be considered to require 2 off-street parking spaces. However this has not been provided 

for all flats on site. No change of use of the property from C3 is occurring so the parking 

requirements would be considered to remain the same. 

 

15. The existing site provides secure cycle storage for 8 cycles, exceeding Development Guidelines 

SPD Paragraph 8.2.7 recommendations of 1 space per 2 dwellings in a communal store.  The existing 

cycle store is considered acceptable to absorb any additional cycle requirements from the increase in 

bedrooms. 

 

 

 



 

 

9. Human Rights 

Human Rights Act - The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights 

Act, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself. This Act gives 

further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on Human Rights. In arriving at this 

recommendation, due regard has been given to the applicant’s reasonable development rights and 

expectations which have been balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as 

expressed through third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government Guidance. 

 

10. Local Finance Considerations 

No charge under current schedule  

 

11. Planning Obligations 

None 

 

12. Equalities and Diversities 

None 

 

13. Conclusions 

Officers have taken account of the NPPF and S38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 

2004 and concluded that the proposal accords with policy and national guidance and recommend 

conditional approval.  Although there is a suspicion that the property has been converted to a Use 

Class C4 dwelling the application has been considered on the basis that it is for a single dwelling 

under Use Class C3.  On that basis officers consider that the application be approved subject to the 

conditions outlined below. 

 

14. Recommendation 

In respect of the application dated 19.09.2017 it is recommended to Grant Conditionally 

 

15. Conditions / Reasons 

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved 

plans:  

 

1 CONDITION: APPROVED PLANS 

 

Site Location Plan 2017.07.00 - received 13/09/17 

Proposed Plans and Sections 2017.07.04 - received 13/09/17 

 

Reason: 

For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of good planning, in accordance with policy CS34 of 

the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and paragraphs 61-

66 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 2 CONDITION: COMMENCE WITHIN 3 YEARS 

 

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years beginning 

from the date of this permission. 

 

Reason: 

To comply with Section 51 of the Planning  & Compulsory Purchase  Act 2004. 

 

 

Informatives 

 

 1 INFORMATIVE: (NOT CIL LIABLE) DEVELOPMENT IS NOT LIABLE FOR A 

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY CONTRIBUTION 

 

The Local Planning Authority has assessed that this development, due to its size or nature, is exempt 

from any liability under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended). 

 

 

 2 INFORMATIVE: UNCONDITIONAL APPROVAL (APART FROM TIME LIMIT 

AND APPROVED PLANS) 

 

In accordance with the requirements of Article 31 of the Town and Country Planning (Development 

Management Procedure) (England) Order 2010 and paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning 

Policy Framework the Council has worked in a positive and pro-active way and has granted planning 

permission. 

 

 

 3 INFORMATIVE: USE OF PROPERTY 

 

The development hereby approved relates to a dwelling under Use Class C3. The site is within an 

area covered by an Article 4 Direction and full planning approval from the Local Planning Authority 
would be required for any future change of use of the property to a House in Multiple Occupation 

(Use Class C4). 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Planning Applications Determined Since Last Committee

Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

10/10/2017 Agreed Condition 17/01033/CDM Mr John Gregory Condition Discharge: Condition 2 of 

application 16/01451/REM

Former Toshiba Site, Ernesettle 

Lane Plymouth PL5 2TX

Mr Simon Osborne

10/10/2017 Agreed Condition 17/01638/CDM EOP II PROP CO I 

S.A.R.L

Condition Discharge: Conditions 12 & 15 of 

application 17/01167/S73M

Plymouth Gateway Retail Park  

270 Plymouth Road Plymouth PL6 

8LN   

Mr Alistair Wagstaff

10/10/2017 Agreed Condition 17/01813/CDC Claire Shenton Confirmation that conditions from 

85/01472/FUL have been satisfied

Glenside Medical Centre Glenside 

Rise Plymouth PL7 4DR 

Mr Chris King

10/10/2017 Agreed Condition 

Details

16/02394/CDM Eop II Prop Co I S.A.R.L Condition Discharge: Condition 8 of 

application 16/01100/FUL

Legacy Plymouth International 

Hotel 270 Plymouth Road 

Plymouth PL6 8NH 

Mr Alistair Wagstaff

10/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01220/S73 Elburton Primary 

School

Vary condition 2 (approved plans) of 

application 13/00656/FUL

Elburton Primary School  Haye 

Road South Plymouth PL9 8HJ

Mr Oliver Gibbins

10/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01354/FUL Plymstock Properties 

Ltd

Hardstanding (demolition of part of 

boundary wall)

10-12 Holland Road Plymstock 

Plymouth PL9 9BW 

Mr Chris Cummings

10/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01642/FUL Mr Robin Bastin Alterations to yacht club building to form 

new pedestrian entrance

Royal Corinthian Yacht Club 

Madeira Road Plymouth PL1 2NY 

Mrs Jess Maslen

10/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01662/ADV Co Op Food Illuminated and non-illuminated signage
 2 Peverell Park Road Plymouth PL3 

4NA

Mrs Jess Maslen

06 November 2017 Page 1 of 14



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

10/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01686/ADV Mr Darren Rigby 1x illuminated fascia sign & 2x window 

graphics

11 Radford Park Road Plymouth 

PL9 9DG

Mrs Jess Maslen

10/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01700/FUL Russell Maidment Rear extension 12 Sunderland Close Plymouth PL9 

9TZ

Mr Chris Cummings

10/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01785/FUL Big Yellow Self Storage 

Company Ltd

Cladding, painting of roller shutter doors and 

associated works

24 - 26 George Place Plymouth PL1 

3NY 

Mr Chris Cummings

11/10/2017  Agreed Minor 

Amendment

17/01760/AMD Mr Simon Ruel Non-material Minor Amendment: Smooth 

rendered finish to the walls instead of faced 

brick work for application 17/00429/FUL

1 Sherford Walk Plymouth PL9 8BB Mrs Alumeci Tuima

11/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00835/REM Mr Brown Reserved Matters for 133 dwellings and 

associated highways, landscaping and 

enclosures to be provided within the 'Saltram 

Meadow' development within Plymstock 

Quarry (Relates to Outline Permission 

07/01094/OUT for up to 1684 dwellings in 

total, phased as part of a new mixed use 

neighbourhood)





Phase 1C Plymstock Quarry, The 

Ride Plymstock Plymouth

Mr Alan Hartridge

11/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01246/FUL Yacht Haven Erection of 7 dwellings & associated works Land Off Barton Road Turnchapel 

Plymouth PL9 9RH

Mr Robert McMillan

11/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01427/FUL Mr Phil Lord Insertion of steel panels with oak boarding to 

5 arched openings

Blocks I And J Tinside East Madeira 

Road Plymouth PL1 2JU 

Mrs Kate Price

11/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01570/TPO Mr Mike White T1 (Laurel) - reduce crown by 50% and shape 

(amendment agreed 02/10/17)
T2 (Elm) - 

Fell
T3 (Sycamore) - reduce in height to 

previous prunng points (approx. 6m)

47 Beaumaris Road Plymouth PL3 

5SB 

Mrs Jane Turner

06 November 2017 Page 2 of 14



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

11/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01668/FUL Mr Simon Clarke Erection of no.1 Portakabin for period of 3 

years

Devonport Health Campus  

Damerel Close Plymouth 

Devonport  PL1 4JZ 

Mr Chris Cummings

11/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01674/FUL Mr Andrew Mudge Remodel front porch, cladding to first floor 

elevations and rear verandah and patio

2 Sparke Close Plymouth PL7 2YA Mr Mike Stone

11/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01697/LBC Plymouth City Council Construction of a new partition in the kitchen St Aubyn Church  Chapel Street 

Devonport Plymouth PL1 4DP

Mrs Kate Price

11/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01713/FUL Mrs Mary McFarlane Creation of a new main entrance concourse Trinity United Reform Church  Torr 

Lane Plymouth PL3 5NY

Mrs Jess Maslen

11/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01720/TCO Mr Luke Foster Weeping Ash - crown lift to max 1m 

clearance from ground level and remove 

deadwood from crown.

Land Adjacent To Metropolitan 

House 37 Craigie Drive Plymouth 

PL1 3JB 

Ms Joanne Gilvear

11/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01722/TPO Peter von Eichstorff Lime - Re-pollard (as agreed on 

05/09/17)
Lawson Cypress - remove dead 

stem

1 Collingwood Villas  Collingwood 

Road Plymouth PL1 5NZ

Ms Joanne Gilvear

11/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01730/FUL Mr Keith Stead Side and rear extension 5 Brynmoor Walk Plymouth PL3 

5LD 

Mrs Alumeci Tuima

11/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01741/TCO Mr Simon Westlake Eucalyptus - remove Ground Floor And First Floor Flat  

20 Home Park Plymouth PL2 1BQ

Ms Joanne Gilvear

06 November 2017 Page 3 of 14



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

11/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01742/TPO Mrs D Foulkes Beech - reduce crown by 2m, thin by 15% 

and crown raise to 5m above ground level 

over road.



2 Blue Haze Close Plymouth PL6 

7HR

Mrs Jane Turner

11/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01778/TPO Mrs Leonie Swabey Tree works including reduction of 1 

Sycamore, repollard 1 Ash and selectively 

thin Sycamore saplings. Enhancement of 

woodland with appropriate understorey 

planting in accordance with the Woodland 

Management Plan dated 14/8/17. 




8 Longwood Close Plymouth PL7 

2HD 

Mrs Jane Turner

11/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01805/FUL Mr D J Gilbert Conversion of garage to habitable room 40 Holtwood Road Plymouth PL6 

7HU

Mr Chris Cummings

11/10/2017 Refused 16/00518/CDM Mr James Webster Condition Discharge: Condition 4, 7 & 8 of 

application 11/00864/FUL

50 Butt Park Road Plymouth PL5 

3NP

Mr Chris Cummings

11/10/2017 Refused 17/01682/FUL Mr & Mrs William 

Callister

Rear extension and first floor garage 

extension including rear dormer for 

residential accommodation

19 Easterdown Close Plymouth 

PL9 8SR 

Mrs Alumeci Tuima

12/10/2017 Agreed Condition 16/02400/CDM Nigel Yarham Condition Discharge: Conditions 3, 7, 12, 13 

& 14 of application 16/00343/LBC

Plymouth Market, Market Avenue 

Plymouth PL1 1PS

Mrs Kate Price

12/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01487/FUL Mr Phil Rump Change of use & conversion of rear part of 

former public house plus external 

alterations, extensions & partial demolition 

to form 2 flats & associated parking

Crown And Column 223 Ker Street 

Plymouth PL1 4EL 

Mr Jon Fox

12/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01784/ADV Big Yellow Self Storage 

Company Ltd

Various illuminated and non-illuminated 

signage

24 - 26 George Place Plymouth PL1 

3NY 

Mr Mike Stone

06 November 2017 Page 4 of 14



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

12/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01828/FUL Mr & Mrs Alan St John Two side dormers 10 Ridge Park Plymouth PL7 2BP Mr Macauley Potter

12/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01837/ADV Sixteen88 Ltd Internally illuminated signage
 67 Mutley Plain Plymouth PL4 6JH Mr Macauley Potter

12/10/2017 Refused 17/01168/FUL Mrs Pamela Bennett Front hardstanding 797 Wolseley Road Plymouth PL5 

1JN

Mr Chris Cummings

13/10/2017 Agreed Condition 16/02053/CDM Mr Johnny Fraser Condition Discharge: Conditions 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 

6 & 7 of application 15/02007/FUL

20 Bedford Road Plymouth PL9 

7DA

Miss Amy Thompson

13/10/2017 Agreed Condition 17/00462/CDM Rev Tim Smith Condition Discharge: Conditions 3, 5 & 6 of 

application 13/02177/FUL

St Judes Church, Beaumont Road 

Plymouth PL4 9BJ  

Mr Jon Fox

13/10/2017 Agreed Condition 17/01678/CDM Turtle Bay Condition Discharge: Conditions 3 & 4 of 

application 17/00475/FUL

5 St Andrews Cross Plymouth PL1 

1AB

Miss Amy Thompson

13/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00505/FUL Mr C Robinson Alterations and extension to comprise 60 

student dwellings and A1 (Shops), A2 

(Financial and Professional), A3 (Restaurants 

and Cafes), B1 (Business) and D2 (Assembly 

and Leisure) Ground and Lower Ground Floor 

use

119 Mayflower Street Plymouth 

PL1 1SD 

Mrs Janine Warne

13/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01604/FUL Mr Lewis Breed Change of basement from shop (Class A1) to 

gymnasium (Class D2)

52 - 56 Embankment Road 

Plymouth PL4 9HY 

Mr Mike Stone

06 November 2017 Page 5 of 14



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

13/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01810/FUL Mr David May Proposed alterations and first floor extension 

(re-submission of application 17/00425/FUL)

2 Sherwell Arcade Plymouth PL4 

8LH 

Mrs Alumeci Tuima

13/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01831/FUL Mr Michael Fesler Rear conservatory 2B Glendower Road Plymouth PL3 

4LA

Miss Amy Thompson

13/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01836/FUL Sixteen88 Ltd New shopfront 67 Mutley Plain Plymouth PL4 6JH Mr Mike Stone

13/10/2017 Refused 17/00802/FUL Wembury Investments 

Ltd

Change of use from office accommodation 

(ground and first floors) to create 4x 

residential units. Facade alterations 

comprising reducing window/doors openings 

and cladding treatment

68 Cattedown Road Plymouth PL4 

0PH 

Mr Chris King

13/10/2017 Refused 17/01563/FUL Mrs Copper Proposed detached dwelling (resubmission of 

17/00614/FUL)

200 Woodford Avenue Plymouth 

PL7 4QU 

Mr Chris King

16/10/2017 Agreed Condition 17/01833/CDC Aimal Gram Confirmation that all conditions that require 

discharging in the planning permission 

reference 86/01897/FUL have been 

discharged.

19 Aspen Gardens Plymouth PL7 

2GD 

Mr Jon Fox

16/10/2017 Agreed Condition 17/01838/CDC Aimal Gram Confirmation that condition 2, 3 and 4 in 

planning permission 79/00502/FUL have 

been complied with.

36 Whitehaven Way Plymouth PL6 

6BJ 

Mr Jon Fox

17/10/2017  Report Issued 17/01832/ERS103 Laura Covington EIA screening opinion for proposed trash 

screen upgrade at Chaddlewood, Plympton

Land At Moorland Avenue 

Chaddlewood Stream Plymouth 

PL7 2DD  

Mr Chris King

06 November 2017 Page 6 of 14



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

17/10/2017 Agreed Condition 17/01806/CDM The Abbeyfield Society Condition Discharge: Condition 32 of 

application 14/01448/OUT

Land At Millbay, Millbay Road 

Plymouth  

Miss Katherine Graha

17/10/2017 Agreed Condition 17/01991/CDC George Edwards Confirmation that all conditions of 

04/02336/FUL have been complied with or 

discharged

92-110 Cattedown Road Plymouth 

PL4 0PD 

Mr Oliver Gibbins

17/10/2017 Agreed Condition 

Details

17/01065/CDM Drake Circue Leisure 

Ltd

Partial Condition Discharge: Conditions 4, 5 & 

7 of application 15/01163/FUL

Bretonside Bus Station  Bretonside 

Plymouth PL4 0BG

Mr John Douglass

17/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00847/FUL Mrs Sandra Pentney Re-alignment, rebuilding & repointing of 

public footpath

Devils Point Footpath PL1 3PA Mr Oliver Gibbins

17/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/00910/FUL Mr & Mrs John Cook Side extension at first floor, front porch and 

rear verandah

2 Penlee Way Plymouth PL3 4AW Mr Mike Stone

18/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01539/FUL Mrs Emma Webb-

Goodwin

Proposed hardstanding and retaining walls 55 Hawkinge Gardens Plymouth 

PL5 2RW 

Mrs Alumeci Tuima

18/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01683/FUL Heles School Cladding and rendering to part of the main 

school building and extension to sports hall 

reception

Heles School Seymour Road 

Plympton Plymouth PL7 4LT 

Miss Amy Thompson

18/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01776/FUL Mr & Mrs B Lawrence Two storey extensions to side and rear 68 Great Woodford Drive 

Plymouth PL7 4RL 

Mr Mike Stone

06 November 2017 Page 7 of 14



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

19/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01830/FUL Mr Brad Jones First floor side extension 286 Fort Austin Avenue Plymouth 

PL6 5SR 

Mrs Alumeci Tuima

19/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01889/FUL Mike Smith Rear extension 23 Lynwood Avenue Plymouth PL7 

4SF

Mr Macauley Potter

19/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01974/ADV Mr John Henley 3x advertisement panels Former Quality Hotel Cliff Road 

Plymouth PL1 3BE 

Mr Chris Cummings

20/10/2017 Agreed Condition 17/01303/CDM Linden Sherford LLP Condition Discharge: Condition 18 

subsections c/q), d) and e) of application 

15/00518/REM (Parcel K)

"Sherford New Community" Land 

South/Southwest Of A38 Deep 

Lane And EastOf Haye Road 

Elburton Plymouth PL9 8DD

Mr Ian Sosnowski

20/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01734/TPO Mr Kevin Coor Various tree works including the felling of 

several Sycamore and Ash as detailed in the 

Dart Tree consultancy report dated 

22/04/2016

26 Powderham Road Plymouth 

PL3 5SG 

Mrs Jane Turner

23/10/2017 Granted 

Conditionally subject 

to S106

17/00570/S73M Mr Ian MacMartin Variation of conditions 2 (plans) and 3 (land 

contamination) of application 13/02348/FUL 

to amend the approved layout and allow 

demolition of  existing buildings

Land Adjacent To Nightingale 

Close Plymouth PL9 8PN

Mrs Katie Saunders

24/10/2017  Agreed Minor 

Amendment

17/01577/AMD Miss Kate Baker Non-material Minor Amendment: 

Amendments to plots 47-60 and 1-12 for 

application 14/00135/FUL

Land Off Towerfield Drive 

Plymouth

Mr Robert McMillan

24/10/2017 Agreed Condition 17/01766/CDM Mr Stuart Coles Condition Discharge: Conditions 3 & 4 of 

application 16/01662/FUL

Rear Of 13 Underwood Road 

Plymouth PL7 1SY 

Miss Amy Thompson

06 November 2017 Page 8 of 14



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

24/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01738/FUL Mr Angus Fraser Extension of rear balcony with stairs 86 Durnford Street Plymouth PL1 

3QW

Mrs Jess Maslen

24/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01739/LBC Mr Angus Fraser Extension of rear balcony with stairs and 

internal alterations

86 Durnford Street Plymouth PL1 

3QW

Mrs Jess Maslen

24/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01758/LBC Mr Todd Internal structural repairs & external lime 

render to rear

45 New Street Plymouth PL1 2ND Mrs Kate Price

24/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01759/LBC Ms Nicola Moyle Enabling works to establish condition of the 

timber framework

Elizabethan House 32 New Street 

Plymouth PL1 2NA 

Mrs Kate Price

24/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01850/FUL Ms Yumei Ellis Change of use of ground and lower ground 

floor retail shop (Class A1) to herbal 

treatment and massage studios (Sui Generis)

66A Mutley Plain Plymouth PL4 

6LF 

Mr Chris Cummings

24/10/2017 Split Decision 17/00536/CDM Mr Steve Billings Condition Discharge: Conditions 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 

9, 10, 11 & 12 of application 16/01172/S73

119 Looseleigh Lane Plymouth PL6 

5HH

Mr Robert McMillan

25/10/2017 Agreed Condition 17/01660/CDM Mr John Rook Condition Discharge: Conditions 15 & 60 of 

application 08/01968/OUT

Plymouth Airport Plymbridge Lane 

Plymouth PL6 8BA 

Mr Robert McMillan

25/10/2017 Agreed Condition 17/01952/CDM Mr Chris Duggan Condition Discharge: Condition 3 of 

application 16/01973/FUL

Lakeside Ernesettle Green 

Plymouth PL5 2ST 

Mr Robert McMillan

06 November 2017 Page 9 of 14



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

25/10/2017 Agreed Condition 

Details

17/00657/CDM Mrs Clare Martin Condition Discharge: Condition 9 of 

application 15/02006/ADV

University Of Plymouth Drake 

Circus Plymouth PL4 8AA 

Mr Chris King

25/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01374/TPO Mrs Jane Cave Various minor tree works as detailed in 

report dated 14th June 2017 (NB: removal of 

deadwood is exempt works)

Hillside Court 31 Station Road 

Plympton Plymouth PL7 2FR 

Mrs Jane Turner

25/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01749/FUL Mr Nigel Searles Remove existing rear timber conservatory 

and replace with a new larger conservatory

24 Haye Road Plymouth PL9 8HR Miss Amy Thompson

25/10/2017 Split Decision 17/01957/CDM Jonathan Bavin Condition Discharge: Conditions 3 & 4 of 

application 16/02274/FUL

1 Armada Street Plymouth PL4 8LS Mr Chris King

26/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01629/ADV Mr G Baily 3no fascia sign internally-illuminated,  1no 

fascia sign non-illuminated, 1no 

hanging/projecting sign internally-

illuminated, 14no other signs non-illuminated

2B Westfield Plymouth PL7 2DY Mrs Jess Maslen

26/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01750/FUL Mrs Sinead Jones Two story rear extension 96 Unity Park Plymouth PL3 6PN Miss Amy Thompson

26/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01781/ADV Karen Darler Fascia and projecting signs 16 St Stephens Place Plymouth PL7 

2ZN

Mrs Alumeci Tuima

26/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01787/FUL Hill First floor extension to existing converted 

garage with rear extension to host dwelling

18 Lockington Avenue Plymouth 

PL3 5QS

Mrs Alumeci Tuima

06 November 2017 Page 10 of 14



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

27/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01645/FUL Mr & Mrs Williamson Two storey side and rear extensions including 

detached garage

49 Trelawny Road Plympton 

Plymouth PL7 4LJ

Mrs Alumeci Tuima

27/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01780/ADV Karen Darler Fascia and projecting sign 64 New George Street Plymouth 

PL1 1RR

Mrs Alumeci Tuima

27/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01807/FUL Mr Adam Elliott Extension to existing rear dormer. 26 Tamar Avenue Plymouth PL2 

1NN

Mr Mike Stone

27/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01874/FUL Mr Nicholas 

Cunningham

Rear extension 25 Gower Ridge Road Plymouth 

PL9 9DR 

Mr Mike Stone

27/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01910/FUL Mr Mark Bullard Removal of gate and infill of opening to 

match existing wall

Rodney Gate Saltash Road 

Plymouth PL2 2BG

Mr Mike Stone

30/10/2017  Agreed Minor 

Amendment

17/02095/AMD Mr Andy Mitchelmore Non-material Minor Amendment: To amend 

road paviours to permeable tarmac for 

application 16/00804/FUL

Land Off Tamar Way West Park 

Plymouth  

Mr Chris King

30/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01788/TCO Mr O'Connell Birch - reduce crown by 1.5m and remove 

dead wood.

11 Penlee Gardens Plymouth PL3 

4AN 

Ms Joanne Gilvear

30/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01811/TCO Stuart Robertson Oak - Reduce crown by 4-5m to natural 

growth points.
Beech - Crown liL by removal 

of one low branch.

31 Whiteford Road Plymouth PL3 

5LU

Ms Joanne Gilvear

06 November 2017 Page 11 of 14



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

30/10/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01856/TPO Mrs Lucy Hayes Trimming of tree overhangs at bottom of 

woodland gardens, into property 36 

Glenfield Road.

5 - 7 Blue Haze Close Plymouth PL6 

7HR 

Ms Joanne Gilvear

01/11/2017 Agreed Condition 17/01351/CDM Rivage Estates Ltd Condition Discharge: Conditions 3, 5 & 6 of 

application 14/01449/FUL

Former Tennis Courts Hoe Road-

Pier Street Plymouth

Mrs Karen Gallacher

01/11/2017 Agreed Condition 17/01372/CDM Rivage Estates Ltd Condition Discharge: Conditions 2, 3 & 4 as 

listed on Appeal Decision 

APP/N1160/W/16/3145157 and Conditions 

2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 13 & 14 of 

application 14/01449/FUL

Hoe Road/Pier Street Plymouth  Mrs Karen Gallacher

01/11/2017 Agreed Condition 17/01835/CDC Aimal Gram Confirmation that conditions 6 and 14 in the 

planning permission reference 13/01786/FUL 

have been discharged

34 Plymview Close Plymouth PL3 

6AL 

Mr Thomas Westrope

01/11/2017 Agreed Condition 17/01847/CDM Mr Alastair Carswell Condition Discharge: Conditions 17, 22 & 28 

of application 14/01448/OUT

Vacant Brownfield Land West Hoe 

Road Plymouth PL1 3BW  

Miss Katherine Graha

01/11/2017 Agreed Condition 17/01986/CDM Taylor Wimpey 

(Exeter) Ltd

Condition Discharge: Condition 26 of 

application 13/00048/FUL

Pennycross Close Plymouth PL2 

3EF   

Mr Chris King

01/11/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01644/FUL Mr & Mrs Martin Chad Erection of three bedroom detached dwelling 92 Church Road Plymstock 

Plymouth PL9 9BD

Miss Amy Thompson

01/11/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01843/TPO Mr Ben Rowe Lawson - redcue by 1.5m
Sycamore - remove 

one lower limb over neighbour.
Cherry - 

fell
Lawson - crown raise to give 2.5m 

clearance above ground  level.
Oak - redcue 

limb over car park by 2m
2x Cherry reduce by 

2m

465 Tavistock Road Plymouth PL6 

7HE 

Mrs Jane Turner

06 November 2017 Page 12 of 14



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

01/11/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01864/TPO Mr R Rabin 1x Oak - reduce whole crown by 1.5 - 2.5m
1x 

Sycamore -  reduce lower canopy branches 

over no.5 Venn Court by 1.5-2m

5 And 6 Venn Court Plymouth PL3 

5NS 

Mrs Jane Turner

01/11/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01931/TPO Mr Peter Howe 1x Oak - redcue split branch and other 

branches to give 1-2m clearance from roof of 

house and above garage.

226 St Peters Road Plymouth PL5 

3HW 

Mrs Jane Turner

02/11/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01818/TCO Stuart Robertson Magnolia - Fell. 31 Whiteford Road Plymouth PL3 

5LU

Ms Joanne Gilvear

02/11/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01840/TPO Mr Barry Hunt Sycamore - Remove one stem
3 x Oak - 

reduce branches by 1-2m. Only lower 

branches to be trimmed, upto a height of 5m 

from ground level.

9 Elmwood Close Plymouth PL6 

7JY 

Ms Joanne Gilvear

02/11/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01857/TPO Mr Howard Rowe 1x Horse Chestnut - Re-pollard
2x Lime - Re-

pollard

1 Charles Terrace Plymouth PL3 

5EY 

Ms Joanne Gilvear

02/11/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01913/TCO Mr Ian Jary 1x Oak (actually a sycamore) - reduce crown 

by 50% to previous pruning points.

265 Stuart Road Plymouth PL1 5LH Ms Joanne Gilvear

03/11/2017  Agreed Minor 

Amendment

17/02021/AMD Mrs Naomi Cook Non-material Minor Amendment: Retention 

of existing garage, reduce length of extension 

to the rear for application 17/01289/FUL

7 Dean Road Plymouth PL7 4HE Mrs Alumeci Tuima

03/11/2017 Agreed Condition 17/01854/CDC Des Mitchell Conditional Compliance: Conditions 1, 2 & 3 

of application 15/00745/FUL

Units 21 - 29, 1 Belliver Way 

Plymouth PL6 7BW 

Mr Chris King

06 November 2017 Page 13 of 14



Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

03/11/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01817/FUL Mr Matt Duncombe First floor extension to create two storey 

dwelling

57 Reservoir Road Plymstock 

Plymouth PL9 8NL

Miss Amy Thompson

03/11/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01849/FUL Mr Tony Clark Rear first floor balcony 117 Staddiscombe Road Plymouth 

PL9 9LT 

Miss Amy Thompson

03/11/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01977/FUL Mr Jason Holland Refurbishment and extension of KS2 Wing Montpelier Primary School North 

Down Road Plymouth PL2 3HN HN 

Mr Mike Stone

03/11/2017 Grant Conditionally 17/01993/FUL Mr & Mrs Wearne Rear extension 15 Trelawny Road Plympton 

Plymouth PL7 4LH

Mr Macauley Potter

03/11/2017 Refused 17/01752/S73 Mr Jamie Oxley Variation of condition 4 of application 

12/00805/FUL to increase number of 

permitted bedrooms from 8 to 10

42 Sutherland Road Plymouth PL4 

6BN

Mr Chris Cummings

06 November 2017 Page 14 of 14



Planning Applications Determined Since Last Committee, cont'd

Decision Date Decision Applicaition No: Applicant Proposal Address Case Officer

12/10/2017 Lawful Certificate 

Issued

17/01861/PRUS Mrs Dyer Change of use of first and second floor from 

offices to 4no. flats

114 - 116 Albert Road Plymouth 

PL2 1AF 

Mr Chris Cummings

17/10/2017  Report Issued 17/01832/ERS103 Laura Covington EIA screening opinion for proposed trash 

screen upgrade at Chaddlewood, Plympton

Land At Moorland Avenue 

Chaddlewood Stream Plymouth 

PL7 2DD  

Mr Chris King

23/10/2017 Lawful Certificate 

Issued

17/01878/PRDE Mr Henry Thomas Rear conservatory 12 Compass Drive Plymouth PL7 

5DX

Mr Chris Cummings

23/10/2017 Lawful Certificate 

Issued

17/01969/PRDE Mr & Mrs Penrose Basement conversion to habitable space and 

installation of windows

10 Poole Park Road Plymouth PL5 

1JH

Mr Chris Cummings

26/10/2017 Prior Approval 

Refused

17/02069/GP1 Ms Rachael Williams Rear extension 31 Grainge Road Plymouth PL6 5LB Mr Macauley Potter

27/10/2017 Lawful Certificate 

Issued

17/01983/PRDE Mr & Mrs Michael 

Sibley

Loft conversion and rear dormer 92 Beatrice Avenue Keyham 

Plymouth PL2 1NX

Mr Chris Cummings

03/11/2017 Lawful Certificate 

Issued

17/01951/EXUS Miss Michelle Coleman Confirm use as a single dwelling (Class C3) 31 Ford Hill Plymouth PL2 1HL Mr Chris Cummings

06 November 2017 Page 1 of 1




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes
	 Schedule of Voting

	6.1 58 Shaw Way Plymouth PL9 9XH - 17/01782/FUL
	6.2 Peirson House Mulgrave Street Plymouth - 17/01826/S73
	6.3 22B Woodside Plymouth PL4 8QE - 17/01858/FUL
	7 Planning Application Decisions Issued

